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The Schlatter Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Schlatter Group is one of the leading specialists in plant engineer-

ing for resistance welding systems for reinforcement mesh, industrial 

mesh and butt welding systems for rails as well as weaving and finish-

ing equipment for the production of paper machine clothing, wire fabrics 

and wire mesh. Thanks to its many years of experience in the field of 

plant technology, its innovative strength and its reliable service, the 

Schlatter Group – which is listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange in the 

Swiss Reporting Standard – guarantees its customers a range of pow-

erful and high-quality production equipment. 
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Resistance Welding Segment  

 

Schlatter has a broad range of experi-

ence in the development and manufac-

ture of welding systems for reinforcing 

wire mesh and industrial mesh, as well 

as mobile and stationary rail welding 

equipment.  

 

Core Technology: Welding 

Ever since its foundation, Schlatter has 

concentrated on electrical resistance 

welding – a bonding process in which 

metal components are heated to welding 

temperature with electric current and 

joined together by the simultaneous im-

pact of mechanical force. Our core tech-

nology is highly versatile, enabling large 

numbers of welding processes to be car-

ried out quickly, accurately and at low 

cost. 

 

Wire Welding Product Area 

Our machines feature high production 

output, flexibility, short retooling times 

and reliable operation, making Schlatter 

an expert global systems provider in the 

markets for both reinforcing and indus-

trial mesh. Structured on the modular 

principle, our broad range of basic ma-

chines and add-on modules gives cus-

tomers economic solutions customized to 

meet their needs.  

 

Rail Welding Product Area 

In the Rail Welding Product Area, the 

Schlatter Group develops stationary and 

mobile rail welding equipment. An under-

lying factor to the global market leader-

ship of the Schlatter systems is the qual-

itative advantages of the core technolo-

gy, which are cost effective for our cus-

tomers in the railway industry.  

 

Weaving Segment  

 

Under the Jäger brand, the Schlatter 

Group offers technologically advanced 

weaving and finishing machines for 

paper-machine clothing, as well as 

wire fabrics and mesh.  

 

PMC (Paper Machine Clothing)  

Product Area 

Schlatter’s Jäger brand is the leading 

manufacturer of machines for the pro-

duction of paper-machine clothing. 

Jäger weaving machines produce all  

modern multilayer weaves which are 

used on the world’s fastest paper ma-

chines.  

 

Wire Weaving Product Area 

The Wire Weaving Product Area de-

velops and builds wire- and mesh-

weaving machines that are designed 

for top-quality weaves. The products 

for which these wire weaving ma-

chines are used include security 

weaves, airbag weaves, protective 

weaves and other industrial weaves. 

Mesh weaving machines are used for 

example for the production of fences, 

protective grills and sieve trays.
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 Net sales (CHF m)  Order intake (CHF m)  Order backlog (CHF m)) 

 

Schlatter Group 

 

   2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
 1
 

       
 

Net sales  CHF million 101.1 90.5 83.2 89.5 96.9 

in comparison to previous year  % 11.7 8.8 -7.0 -7.7 -16.1 

Operating result (EBIT)  CHF million 2.5 1.1 -5.9 0.7 0.2 

in % of Net sales  % 2.5 1.2 -7.1 0.8 0.2 

Net result  CHF million 2.9 0.5 -6.9 -0.2 -0.4 

in % of Net result  % 2.8 0.6 -8.3 -0.2 -0.4 

        

Order intake  CHF million 94.6 107.7 72.9 104.7 84.0 

Order backlog  CHF million 42.5 49.0 31.9 42.2 27.1 

        

Headcount per 31.12.  FTEs 345 319 310 313 313 

average headcount  FTEs 332 312 314 309 323 

Net sales per employee  CHF 1000 305 290 265 290 300 

        

Interest bearing liabilities  CHF million 0.3 0.5 0.6 11.3 7.3 

Net financial position (debt) 
2
  CHF million 11.2 14.0 2.1 -7.9 -3.0 

Gearing 
3
  % 0.0 0.0 0.0 57.1 21.5 

Free Cash Flow 
4
  CHF million -2.8 11.9 -5.4 -4.6 -2.7 

        

Current assets  CHF million 49.8 48.1 39.8 38.0 36.9 

Non current assets  CHF million 6.3 7.3 9.3 11.2 12.6 

Liabilities  CHF million 30.7 33.1 27.5 35.3 35.5 

Equity  CHF million 25.4 22.3 21.6 13.9 14.0 

Equity ratio  % 45.3 40.2 44.0 28.2 28.2 

        

Return on equity (ROE) 
5
  % 12.1 2.3 -38.7 -1.3 -2.8 

 
1 Restatement 2013 due to the incorrect presentation of a financial liability in connection 

with a reduction in rent granted in 2012 and 2013 with repayment over the remaining term 

of the lease. 
2 Net financial position (debt): cash and cash equivalents less interest bearing liabilities  
3 Gearing: Net financial debt divided by equity 
4 Cash flow from operating activities less purchase of fixed assets and intangible assets, 

plus sale of fixed assets and intangible assets 
5 Net result divided by average equity 
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 Operating result EBIT (CHF m)  Free Cash Flow (CHF m)  Net financial position (debt) (CHF m) 

 

 

   2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

        

Key share figures        

Share capital as of 31st December  CHF 1 000 17 675 17 675 17 675 13 465 13 465 

Total registered shares  No. 1 104 704 1 104 704 1 104 704 426 250 426 250 

Dividend entitled registered shares  No. 1 104 704 1 104 704 1 104 704 426 081 426 081 

Net result per registered share  
1
  CHF 2.60 0.46 -6.22 -0.42 -0.93 

Equity per registered share  
1
  CHF 23.03 20.17 19.55 32.54 32.81 

Payout ratio  CHF 0
2
 0 0 0 0 

Payout Ratio  % 0
2
 0 0 0 0 

        

Share price development        

High  CHF 58.00 44.00 77.18 159.00 210.00 

Low  CHF 38.00 29.20 28.30 108.00 110.00 

Year end  CHF 47.75 38.75 30.00 140.00 149.50 

        

Market capitalization        

High  CHF million 64.1 48.6 85.3 67.8 89.5 

Low  CHF million 42.0 32.3 31.3 46.0 46.9 

Year end  CHF million 52.7 42.8 33.1 59.7 63.7 
 

1 Calculated on the basis of dividend bearing shares 
2 According to the proposal to the Annual General Meeting on 3 May 2018
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 Paul Zumbühl 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Werner Schmidli 

Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Schlatter Group increased both net sales and profit in the financial 
year 2017. The current good state of the world economy and the major 
development initiatives of recent years are having a positive impact on  the 
willingness to invest of our customers and on our market success; Schlat-
ter has successfully gained market share with its newly launched prod-
ucts. Whereas the welding segment generated an impressive profit in the 
2017 financial year, the weaving segment slipped back into the red. No 
fundamental change in the market environment is expected in 2018, and 
Schlatter’s market position has been further strengthened by the product 
development drive. In the financial year 2018, Schlatter is targeting a 
profit in excess of the previous year; both segments should contribute to 
this increase in profitability. 
 
 

Schlatter Group increases net sales and profit 
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The Schlatter Group increased net 

sales by 11.7% to CHF 101.1 million in 

the 2017 financial year (2016: CHF 

90.5 million) and generated a lower or-

der intake to the previous year of CHF 

94.6 million (2016: CHF 107.7 million). 

As of 31.12.2017, the order backlog 

stood at CHF 42.5 (31.12.2016: CHF 

49.0 million). The Schlatter Group 

posts a positive operating result (EBIT) 

of CHF 2.5 million for the reporting pe-

riod (2016: CHF 1.1 million). With a 

consolidated net result of CHF 2.9 mil-

lion (2016: CHF 0.5 million) , the 

Schlatter Group closes the financial 

year 2017 with a profit that significantly 

outstrips the previous year’s result.  

. 

Markets 

 

Systems for the manufacture of rein-

forcing mesh 

Following the slight recovery in the 2016 

financial year, steel prices managed to 

maintain a rather higher level in 2017 

compared to previous years. Together 

with the generally good state of the 

world economy, this had a positive effect 

on the investment activity of mesh pro-

ducers. Furthermore, the higher oil price 

is fuelling expectations that in oil-

producing countries, infrastructure pro-

jects postponed for prolonged periods in 

the past will now finally be realised. 

 

Surplus capacity at mesh factories in Eu-

rope has given further impetus to consol-

idation and concentration initiatives on 

the part of customers. The large indus-

trial groups that dominate the market are 

modernising their production facilities, 

particularly in northern Europe. Schlatter 

has benefited from this development, 

winning a number of large orders over 

the past two years.  

 

China is the world’s largest consumer of 

construction steel. The local construction 

industry is, however, almost entirely 

dominated by mono-rod reinforcements. 

While Schlatter is not expecting conven-

tional mesh factories to grow, it is ex-

pecting a rise in the use of prefabricated 

concrete elements in which welded mesh 

plays an ever-increasing part. In south-

east Asia we are seeing good demand 

for flexible, highly productive and rapidly 

upgradeable reinforcing mesh installa-

tions. 

 

Business in Brazil for new systems came 

to a standstill in 2014. We are, however, 

currently seeing a slight recovery in the 

investment mood among customers in 

our key South American market. Several 

projects were won during the 2017 finan-

cial year, which makes us cautiously op-

timistic with respect to future develop-

ments. In various Central American 

countries and in the emerging markets in 

general, there is still a need for high-

performance machines for standardized 

reinforcing mesh. 

 

 

Installations for the production of 

industrial mesh 

The MG950 product family, which was 

launched several years ago and has 

continually been further developed, 

has again won numerous orders 

thereby establishing a stable business 

base. Alongside Europe, the USA is 

one of the most important markets for 

industrial mesh. 

 

In China, the potential in the field of 

industrial mesh production is growing 

as the level of automation and quality 

requirements increase. This is reflect-

ed on the one hand in a growing de-

mand for reconditioned, used Schlat-

ter systems and on the other hand in 

the demand for new systems projects. 

 

In Russia, we are seeing a gradual re-

covery in the area of systems for in-

dustrial mesh production.  

 

Since 2016, Schlatter has selectively 

been investing additional money and 

resources in the marketing of mesh 

production systems in markets where 

it previously only had a low-key pres-

ence, such as the Middle East. In 

2017 financial year, the first signifi-

cant sales were booked in these re-

gions. 

 

Rail welding 

Sales of rail welding systems devel-

oped at a modest stable level. Growth 

in this profitable market is difficult to 

achieve as Schlatter operates in a 

small niche and any expansion of the 

product offering would mean compet-

ing with major groups that already en-

joy an established market presence. 

 

Equipment for the production of 

paper machine clothing and wire 

netting 

The sales generated in 2017 financial 

year were broadly on a par with the 

level of the previous year. The Asian 

region has seen an increase in de-

mand, with the bulk of investment in 

new systems taking place in China. In 

Western markets, the focus of cus-

tomer activities remains on the optimi-

sation of existing production sites. In  
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previous years the market exhibited a 

volatile, declining trend as paper mil ls 

continued the process of consolidation. 

This trend appears to have run its 

course, and local manufacturers in 

China are now growing. In recent 

years, our machines for the production 

of paper machine clothing have be-

come much more efficient compared to 

those of competitors. Growth in both 

global and online trade, together with 

the decommissioning of old paper mills 

in China for environmental reasons, is 

likely to result in an increase in in-

vestments in this market. Other fields 

of application such as newsprint are in 

decline. The Schlatter Group believes 

the market has now stabilised, and an-

ticipates an order intake in the finan-

cial year 2018 at least matching the 

previous year’s figure. 

 

Spare parts and service 

Business in the spare parts and ser-

vice field posted a stable performance, 

and contributes around 30 percent to 

the Group’s net sales. Schlatter has a 

great number of installations all over 

the world. With a view to strengthening 

the after-sales business, the existing 

potential in the wire area should be 

used more intensively.  

 

Product development 

 

The Schlatter Group channelled signif-

icant financial resources into product 

development in 2017. In the reporting 

period, this investment amounted to 

CHF 5.1 million (2016: CHF 5.4 mil-

lion). In the 2018 financial year, a simi-

lar level of expenditure in product de-

velopment is planned. 

 

In the welding segment, the focus of 

innovation is on the wire product area 

(systems for the production of reinforc-

ing and industrial mesh). Thanks to the 

development of a new machine plat-

form, product costs are to be cut and 

the complexity resulting from the broad 

product portfolio reduced substantially. 

This project, which will unfold over the 

medium to long term, is expected to 

deliver lasting competitive advantages 

for the wire product area. 

 

Product innovations, such as the contin-

ual development of the MG950 industrial 

mesh product family and the expansion 

of the MG800 systems family in the area 

of reinforcing mesh, are further points of 

focus. For example, the MG800 systems 

family, which is characterised by high 

flexibility, high efficiency levels and short 

conversion times, is to be supplemented 

by a much more cost-effective variant in 

the lower performance area. Further-

more, all projects in the market contain-

ing prototypes are to be stabilized and 

completed in 2018. 

 

At the site in Münster, weaving machines 

were brought into line with the latest 

technical advances. Among other things, 

this included the successful launch of 

the new BK860 generation of rapier 

weaving machines for the drying area. In 

addition, the range of finishing machines 

was enhanced with a number of func-

tional improvements to the benefit of 

customers  

 

Substantial investments in production 

at the location in Münster 

 

A significant investment programme to 

overhaul production in Münster was ap-

proved in 2017. The new production ma-

chinery will for the most part enter into 

operation in the financial year 2018. 

Parallel to this development, the manu-

facturing process will be increased from 

2-shift to 3-shift production. This will al-

low Schlatter to produce itself a signif i-

cant number of parts that have up until 

now been sourced externally, which 

should in turn improve both the gross 

margin and capacity utilisation. At the 

same time, assembly processes are be-

ing overhauled with a view to significant-

ly increasing productivity.  

 

Changes to Group Management 

 

As of 1st January, 2017, Harald Reich 

was appointed Managing Director of 

Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG 

and a member of Group Management. 

Frank Schröter, the former head of 

Schlatter Deutschland GmbH who had 

worked at the site in Münster for 37 

years, took early retirement at the end of  

 

June 2017. Michaela Wingeier, Head 

of Human Resources, has accepted a 

new challenge outside of the Schlatter 

Group and will leave the company with 

effect of July 31, 2018. We would like 

to thank both Michaela Wingeier and 

Frank Schröter for their dedicated 

work and wish them all the best for 

the future. 

 

There were no changes to the Board 

of Directors during the past financial 

year. 

 

Acknowledgements 

 

Over the past few years, the Schlatter 

Group was confronted with a number 

of major challenges. During this peri-

od, all stakeholders made important 

contributions to secure a lasting sta-

bility for the Group. This commitment 

had its first effects in the financial 

year 2016 and further progress has 

impacted the 2017 financial year. On 

behalf of the Board of Directors and 

the management, we sincerely thank 

our employees for their active support. 

We also thank our customers for the 

challenging and exciting projects that 

we were able to successfully realize 

together in the past financial year. 

You, dear shareholders, we would like 

to thank  for the trust you have shown 

us with your commitment to our com-

pany.  

 

Outlook 

 

The innovation initiatives of recent 

years, the more buoyant market envi-

ronment and the upturn in the global 

economy as well as the somewhat 

weaker Swiss franc give the Schlatter 

Group a boost. Despite the still exact-

ing conditions, Schlatter is well posi-

tioned for the 2018 financial year. Fol-

lowing the above-average level of or-

der intake in 2016, this rate returned 

to a normal level in 2017. For the f i-

nancial year 2018, we expect a mod-

erate increase. The marketing drive in 

sales which includes the setting-up of 

additional sales resources in the 

emerging markets and the establish-

ment of a sales and service facility in  
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China, results in increasing sales in 

these regions. The package of 

measures to reduce product costs and 

improve the price level for weaving 

machines should help the weaving 

segment return to profitability in 2018. 

The Board of Directors and the man-

agement are aiming for a profit for the 

2018 financial year that is higher than 

the previous year. The Board of Direc-

tors will propose to the Annual General 

Meeting on 3 May 2018 to forgo the 

distribution of a dividend for the 2017 

financial year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paul Zumbühl Werner Schmidli 

Chairman of the Chief Executive 

Board of Directors Officer 
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The cost-cutting measures implemented in 2015 due to the strength of the 
Swiss franc have further confirmed their positive impact on earnings. In 
addition, the moderate weakening of the Swiss franc will sustain the prof-
itability of the Welding segment in the 2018 financial year. Projects to re-
duce manufacturing and production costs have established themselves as 
a permanent task. With the development of a new machine platform, the 
complexity is to be reduced and product costs enduringly lowered in the 
long term. No fundamental change is expected in the market environment 
for 2018 and given the product development drive of recent years, the 
market positioning is promising. In the Welding segment, Schlatter is aim-
ing for the financial year 2018, for net sales similar to the previous year 
and a higher profit. 
 

Welding segment generates higher sales and profit 



 

 

13 

In the Welding segment, net sales in-
creased to CHF 81.4 million in the 
2017 financial year (2016: CHF 69.8 
million). Order intake of CHF 73.8 mil-
lion was as expected below the level of 
the previous year (2016: CHF 86.7 mil-
lion). The comparatively high order in-
take of the previous year included two 
large orders totaling CHF 17.5 million. 
The order backlog at the end of the 
year amounted to CHF 34.5 million 
(31.12.2016: CHF 42.1 million). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Systems for the manufacture of rein-

forcing mesh 
 
In the reinforcing mesh area, our larg-

est in terms of sales, a slight recovery 

has taken hold in many markets 

around the world. Previously post-

poned modernisation and replacement 

investments on the part of customers 

have now been realised. Compared to 

the previous year, the volume of busi-

ness processed has almost doubled 

which has led to positive economies of 

scale and improved profitability. 
 
Schlatter has reacted in recent years 

to the changed conditions for its cus-

tomers with the development of new 

plant concepts for the production of re-

inforcing wire mesh. These include, for 

example, the new generation of the 

MG316 high-performance welding sys-

tem and the MG800 system concept. 

The sales successes show that the 

system concepts meet the customers’ 

needs. 

Systems for the production of indus-

trial mesh 
 
The flexible and productive MG950 ma-

chine generation with its application ex-

tensions has become well established in 

Europe and also in the USA. The appli-

cation possibilities of this plant genera-

tion for the production of industrial mesh 

will be further extended on a modular 

basis. The trend is towards integrated 

system solutions for the production of 

end products. These manufacturing con-

cepts also integrate machines and 

equipment that are not restricted to pro-

duction of mesh alone, which will affect 

the development of this business in the 

coming years. 
 
One particular application within indus-

trial mesh production are systems for 

producing mesh fences. Schlatter has 

expanded its product portfolio in recent 

years with the high-performance NS240 

system, which can be used, for example, 

for the production of mobile fences, and 

the MG700 flexible mesh fence system 

for flexible applications, with which even 

more fence products can be produced. 

Along with the development of the ma-

chine platform, a new systems family is 

to be created in the fencing mesh area 

with a view to covering customer needs 

more comprehensively. 
 
Rail welding product area  
 
Thanks to its dominant market position 

for stationary rail welding equipment, 

Schlatter was able to maintain its market 

share in the 2017 financial year. The 

market volume, in this product area is 

however, significantly lower compared to 

that of mesh machines. 

In the field of mobile rail welding sys-

tems, competition has increased as 

large corporations with a comprehen-

sive offering in the area of track su-

perstructure are expanding their prod-

uct portfolio into mobile rail welding. 

These companies not only have 

greater market power across the en-

tire track superstructure area, but also 

offer services such as contracting, 

company leasing or rental of equip-

ment. It is pleasing to note that the 

sale of mobile rail welding systems in 

Russia, which had been targeted in 

the past, have picked up again and 

several contracts have been conclud-

ed. Schlatter is the first Western com-

pany to homologate mobile systems in 

Russia and thereby obtain state ap-

proval. This homologation is also ap-

plicable to all other CIS countries. 
 
Outlook 
 
With the current order backlog, the ex-

isting capacities in the Welding seg-

ment are well utilized. Bottlenecks ex-

ist in particular in the technical de-

partments and in the commissioning of 

sold equipment. In addition to the fur-

ther implementation of measures to 

increase productivity and reduce 

manufacturing costs, further medium-

term measures have priority. Schlatter 

invests concertedly in product devel-

opment and in the development of 

markets. In addition, the strengthening 

of after-sales is given high priority. In 

the Welding segment, Schlatter aims 

for the 2018 financial year net sales 

comparable to the current year and a 

higher profit. 
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Despite good capacity utilization, the weaving segment realized a loss in 
the 2017 financial year. One reason for this development is a lack of fin-
ishing machines for technical textiles, which have a higher level of profita-
bility than weaving machines. A combination of product cost-cutting 
measures and a higher price level for weaving machines should ensure a 
return to profitability in 2018. Net sales in the 2017 financial year were 
primarily generated by machinery for the manufacture of paper machine 
clothing. The sales volume in the wire weaving machinery area accounted 
for some 15 percent of the Weaving segment’s net sales in 2017, which 
represented a slight increase. Around a third of net sales at the site in 
Münster is generated by the manufacture of parts and modules for the site 
in Schlieren.  
 

Major investment programme launched for production in Münster  
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In the 2017 financial year, the order in-

take in the weaving segment remained 

unchanged at CHF 20.8 million (2016: 

CHF 21.0 million). Net sales in the re-

porting year amounted to CHF 19.7 

million (2016: CHF 20.7 million) slightly 

below the level of the previous year. 

As at December 31, 2017 the order 

backlog stood at CHF 8.0 million 

(31.12.2016: CHF 6.9 million). 
.

Weaving machines for paper machine 

clothing (PMC) 
 
The BK860 systems model in the drying 

area was successfully introduced to cus-

tomers. This extends the area of applica-

tion of the BK860 system type from form-

sieving to dry sieving. Thanks to the 

higher number of revolutions reached by 

the BK860 for dry sieving, our customers 

are benefiting from a major productivity 

leap. In the finishing area, a number of 

follow-up orders were booked in the 

2017 financial year with the thermoset-

ting system, which was newly developed 

in 2016 and offers superior process func-

tionality as well as lower energy con-

sumption. 
 
 
Wire weaving  
 
The GD620 woven-wire screen assembly 

machine overhauled in 2016 was suc-

cessfully launched in the market; initial 

orders were delivered in the first half of 

2017. This system represents the first 

solution offered worldwide for the fully-

automatic weaving of 8mm spring steel 

wire for fine sieving. This has opened up 

new sales potential in the area of wire 

weaving. 
 
 
Outlook 
 
The Schlatter Group expects a positive 

market environment for the new financial 

year. Capacities in the weaving segment 

are well utilized. It is expected that prof-

itability will increase significantly and 

that the segment will return to the profit 

zone over the course of the new financial 

year. For 2018, Schlatter is aiming to 

maintain net sales at the prior-year level 

and achieve a profit.
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Group structure and organization chart per 31.12.2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responsible corporate management 

By enacting guidelines appropriate to the size of the company, Corporate 
Governance at the Schlatter Group ensures that business policy is trans-
parent and cautious, and that the resources employed are used efficiently. 
The present Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in accord-
ance with the requirements of the SIX Swiss Exchange guidelines for infor-
mation for Corporate Governance. 
 

Board of directors 

Paul Zumbühl, Chairman 

Michael Hauser, Vice Chairman 

Ruedi Huber 

Nicolas Mathys 

Group Management 

Werner Schmidli 

Human Resources 

Michaela Wingeier 

until 31.7.2018 

Finance & IT 

Reto Stettler 

Segment Weaving 

Harald Reich 

Segment Welding 

Werner Schmidli 

Sales & Service 

Daniel Zappa 

Technology 

Beat Huber 

Operations 

Roland Kasper 
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Listed company  

Schlatter Industries AG is the Schlatter Group holding company. Its registered office  

and headquarters are at Brandstrasse 24 in Schlieren (CH). Either directly or indirec t-

ly, the company holds all the shares in the Schlatter Group companies. Registered 

shares in Schlatter Industries AG (formerly Schlatter Holding AG) were listed on the 

Main Segment of the SIX Swiss Exchange from 1998 until 30 November 2012. It  trans-

ferred to the Domestic Standard Segment on 3 December 2012 when the  company 

adopted Swiss GAAP FER for its accounting rules instead of IFRS. Owing to the revi-

sion of regulatory standards, the shares have been traded in the Swiss Reporting 

Standard of the SIX Swiss Exchange since 3 August 2015.  

 

Swiss securities no. 227731  

ISIN CH0002277314  

Telekurs STRN  

Reuters STRN.S  

 

The Schlatter Industries AG market capitalization as at 31.12.2017 was  CHF 52.7 mil-

lion. 

 

Unlisted group companies 

Information on the Schlatter Group companies can be found on pages 67 and 80 of 

this Annual Report.  

 

Major shareholders 

Information on major shareholders can be found on page 83 of this Annual Report.  

 

The disclosure reports published during the year under review are available on the 

SIX Swiss Exchange website:  

www.six-exchange-regulation.com/de/home/publications/significant-shareholders.html 

 

Shareholder structure  

 

Number of shares Number of shareholders 

1 to 10 47 

11 to 100 114 

101 to 1000 119 

1 001 to 10 000 20 

over 10 000 13 

 

 

These figures are based on the registered shareholders entered in the company’s  

share register as at 31.12.2017. Of the 1,104,704 shares issued, 964,047 shares 

(87.3%) were entered in the share register on the reporting date .  

 

Cross shareholdings  

There are no mutual interests in terms of either capital or voting rights between 

Schlatter Industries AG and the major shareholders listed on page 83 of this Annual 

Report.  

 

Capital structure  

 

Capital  

 

Ordinary share capital 

As at 31 December 2017 Schlatter Industries AG had an ordinary share capital of CHF 

17,675,264, divided into 1,104,704 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 

16.00 each. The share capital is fully paid up. Each registered share carries one vote 

at the General Meeting. All shares are dividend-bearing except those held by the 

company or one of its subsidiaries. 

 

As at 31 December 2017 the company had no conditional capital and had issued no 

participation or dividend-right certificates or bonds of any kind.  
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Capital changes 
The proposed ordinary capital increase in conjunction with a reduction in the nominal 
value of shares was approved by the Ordinary General Meeting on 5 May 2015. The 
nominal value of the existing 426,250 shares was reduced from CHF 31.59 to CHF 
16.00 per share. The resulting new share capital of CHF 6,820,000 was then in-
creased to CHF 17,050,000 by issuing 639,375 new shares at CHF 16.00.   
 
The Ordinary General Meeting on 5 May 2015 also approved the creation of autho r-
ized capital of up to 40,000 shares. Of these, 39,079 shares were newly issued so that 
the fixed remuneration of the Board of Directors and the variable remuneration of  the 
Group Management could be paid exclusively in Schlatter shares in 2015.  Ordinary 
share capital was thus increased by CHF 625,264 to CHF 17,675,264.   
 
As at 31 December 2017 the company had no authorized capital available.  
 
Information on changes in share capital, reserves, net profit and consolidated  share-
holders’ equity for the financial year 2017 can be found on page 42 under “Consoli-
dated statement of changes in equity”. The equivalent information for the two previous 
financial years can be found on page 44 of the 2016 Annual report and on page 46 of 
the 2015 Annual Report. 
 

Transferability restrictions and nominee registrations  

Shares in Schlatter Industries AG are freely transferable. Fiduciary registration with 

voting rights and without restrictions is possible for Nominees.  

 

Convertible bonds and options  

As at 31 December 2017, the company had issued no convertible bonds, similar 

equity-linked debt instruments or options.  

 

 

Board of directors  

 

Members of the board  

Under the company’s Articles of Incorporation the Board of Directors consists of at  

least three members. As at 31st December 2017, it was composed of the persons 

listed below. No member of the Board of Directors has exercised an executive function  

within the Schlatter Group in the past three years, or has a significant business rela-

tionship with any Group company.  

 

Statutory rules concerning activities and allowances 

Article 28 of the Articles of Association regulates the number of further activities ad-

missible for the members of the Board of Directors. The rules governing the remunera-

tion of directors are set out in Article 30. No loans or credits may be granted to the 

members of the Board of Directors (Article 27).  

 

At the General Meeting where the remuneration of the Board of Directors is dete r-

mined, the members of the Board of Directors are also entitled to participate and vote . 

 

The Articles of Association of the Company are published at the following URL:  

www.schlattergroup.com/de/investor-relations/ 
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Paul Zumbühl  

Chairman 

b. 1957, Swiss national, non-executive member, member of the Board since 29 October 

2007, term of office until Annual General Meeting 2018 

 

Current activity  

CEO of Interroll Group, Sant’Antonino (CH) since 1.1.2000 

 

Career milestones  

 1994 - 1999 Managing Director and CEO of Mikron Plastics Technology, member of 

the Group Management of the Mikron Group, Biel/Bienne(CH)  

 1988 - 1994 Managing Director of the Sarna Group, Sarnen (CH) with additional 

managerial functions 

 1984 - 1987 Sales Engineer as well as Sales Manager Europe at Symalit AG, 

Lenzburg (CH) 

 

Education and training 

Dipl. Ing. degree in Engineering (Lucerne School of Engineering); MBA (Joint University 

Programme of the Universities of Berne, Boston and Shanghai); AMP of the Kellogg 

Business School of the Northwestern University Evanston/Chicago 

 

Other activities and mandates 

Member of the Industry Executive Advisory Board of the «Executive MBA Supply Chain 

Management» at the ETH Zürich 

 

 

Michael Hauser  

Vice Chairman 

b. 1961, Swiss national/German, non-executive member, member of the Board since 3 

May 2016, term of office until Annual General Meeting 2018  

 

Current activity 

CEO Tornos SA, Moutier (CH) since 2011 

 

Career milestones 

 2008 - 2010 Member of the Group Management of Georg Fischer AG and head of 

business area GF AgieCharmilles 

 2000 - 2008 Member of the Group Management GF AgieCharmilles and Head of D i-

vision Milling (Mikron, Bostomatic, Step-Tec) 

 1996 - 2000 Member of the Group Management Mikron Technology Group and Head 

of the Division Milling Machines  

 

Education & training 

Dipl. Kaufmann, University of Mannheim 

 

Other activities and mandates 

SWISSMEM, Directorate member and chairman of the section «Machine tools and man-

ufacturing technology», CECIMO «European Committee for Cooperation of the Machine 

Tool Industries», delegate (member of the board until November 2017, chairman from 

2009 until 2011) 

 

 

Ruedi Huber 

Member 

b. 1960, Swiss national, non-executive member, member of the Board since 11 May 

2010, term of office until Annual General Meeting 2018 

 

Current activity 

Member of various boards of directors 

 

Career milestones 

 1996 - 2014 SFS Intec, Heerbrugg (CH) 

 1985 - 1996 Sales Engineer, SFS England and involved in setting-up SFS USA 

 

Education and training 

Matura Typ C 

 

Other activities and mandates 

Member of the Board of Directors of Huwa Finanz- und Beteiligungs AG, Heerbrugg, 

and member of the board of other unlisted companies  
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Nicolas Mathys Mem-

ber 

b. 1968, Swiss national, non-executive member, member of the Board since 3 May 

2016, term of office until Annual General Meeting  

 

Current activity 

Partner of Zug Finance AG, Baar (CH) 

 

Career milestones 

 2001 - 2009 Partner of Zulauf Asset Management AG 

 1998 - 2001 Portfolio Manager/Company Analyst bei Zulauf Asset Management AG 

 1993 - 1996 Project Engineer F. Hoffmann - La Roche AG, Basel 

 

Education & training 

Master of Business Administration, SDA BOCCONI, Milan; Master in Chemical Eng i-

neering, ETH Zürich 

 

Other activities and mandates 

Member of the board of several unlisted companies in Switzerland and abroad  

 

 

 

 

Changes during the reporting period  

During the reporting period 2017, there were no changes.  

 

Peter Müller stepped down from the Board of Directors of Schlatter Industries AG, on 

3 May 2016 effective of the date of the Annual General Meeting.  

 

At the Annual General Meeting of 3 May 2016, two new members were recruited to the 

Board of Directors of Schlatter Industries. Nicholas Mathys, co-founder and Partner of 

Zug Finance AG, Baar, and Michael Hauser, CEO of Tornos were elected.  

 

Elections and terms of office  

Schlatter Industries AG has complied with the provisions of the Ordinance against Ex-

cessive Compensation in Listed Companies (VegüV) with regard to the election and 

term of office of the Board of Directors since 2009. The required changes to the Art i-

cles of Association were approved at the 2015 General Meeting.  

 

Internal Organisation  

The Board of Directors is self-constituting, subject to the mandatory authority of the 

General Meeting, in that it elects its own Vice Chairman and Secretary. The Secretary 

need neither be a member of the Board nor a shareholder. The Board of Directors 

adopts resolutions and carries out elections by a majority of the votes cast. In the 

event of a tie the Chairman has the casting vote. The Chairman convenes the Board 

as often as business requires. As a rule it holds six one-day or half-day meetings and 

a one-day meeting in camera. The Board of Directors held five meetings during the f i-

nancial year 2017.  

 

Number of permissible mandates  

No member of the Board of Directors may hold more than five other mandates of s u-

preme management and administrative bodies of listed companies outside the Group. 

In individual cases the Board of Directors can permit up to two exceptions. Membe r-

ship of more than one such body within a single group counts as one membership.  

 

Committees of the Board of Directors  

The Board of Directors has appointed a Risk and Audit Committee and a Nomination 

and Compensation Committee. These committees support the Board of Directors but 

have no decision-making authority. The duties and responsibilities assigned to the 

Board of Directors in accordance with the Organizational Regulations and the law r e-

main with the Board of Directors as an overall body. As a rule, the terms of office of 

members of the committees of the Board of Directors coincide  with their terms of of-

fice as directors of Schlatter Industries AG.  
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Risk and Audit Committee  

Members: Paul Zumbühl (Chair), Ruedi Huber  

The Risk and Audit Committee supports the Board of Directors in its supervision of the 

accounting function and of compliance to statutory requirements. The committee has 

the following main tasks: 

 

 Reviewing the accountancy presentation (accounting standards being applied, as-

sessment of valuation and financing principles, internal and external financial re-

porting) in terms of its suitability, reliability and effectiveness.  

 Reviewing the annual financial statements and other financial information subject 

to publication. 

 Monitoring and assessing corporate risks and reviewing risk-management practic-

es. 

 Monitoring business activity with regard to compliance with resolutions of the 

Board of Directors, internal regulations and guidelines, instructions and statutory 

regulations, and especially those of stock market legislation (compliance).  

 Reviewing the performance, independence and remuneration of the external audi-

tors and nominating candidates for the consideration of the Board of Directors and 

the General Meeting. 

 Dealing with audit reports, discussing all important findings and recommendations 

of the external auditors with them and Group Management. 

 Monitoring the implementation of recommendations by the external auditors.  

 Reviewing the performance and remuneration of advisory mandates with related 

persons. 

 Performing other tasks delegated to the committee by the Board of D irectors  

 

The Risk and Audit Committee also performs the tasks described in Note 27 (page 65) 

relating to financial risk management. 

 

The committee meets as often as business requires, but at least twice a year. It holds 

at least one meeting a year with representatives of the external auditors. Meetings are 

normally attended by the CFO. Other members of the Board of Directors, the CEO, 

other members of the Group Management and other technical specialists can also be 

invited to attend. The Risk and Audit Committee held two meetings in financial year 

2017, both of them attended by the CEO and CFO 

 

Nomination and Compensation Committee  

Members: Michael Hauser (Chair), Paul Zumbühl  

The Nomination and Compensation Committee prepares all relevant agenda items i n 

Nomination and Compensation areas with regard to members of the Board of Directors 

and Group Management. The committee has the following tasks:  

 

 Managing the selection process and motions regarding new members of the Board 

of Directors. 

 Managing the selection process and motions regarding the CEO.  

 Reviewing the selection process for members of the Group Management (including 

interviews at the final selection stage) and the principal terms of their contracts of 

employment. 

 Proposing the compensation of the Board of Directors and its committees.  

 Reviewing, negotiating and proposing the compensation of the CEO.  

 Reviewing and proposing the compensation of members of the Group Management 

at the request of the CEO. 

 Reviewing, proposing and monitoring the implementation of option and share op-

tion plans for the Board of Directors, the CEO, Group Management and other em-

ployees. 

 Succession planning at senior management level.  

 Performing other tasks delegated to the committee by the Board of Directors. 
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The committee meets as often as business requires, but at least twice a year. As a 

rule the CEO attends meetings except when his performance is assessed and his r e-

muneration fixed. Other members of the Board of Directors, other members of the 

Group Management and other technical specialists can also be invited to attend. The 

Nomination and Compensation Committee held two meetings in the 2017 financial 

year; the CEO attended both of them. 

 

Division of responsibilities  

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall direction and supervision of the 

management. It determines corporate policy, business policy, the company’s long -

term objectives and the resources required to achieve them. The non -transferable and 

inalienable duties of the Board of Directors are set out in Art. 716 a of the Code of Ob-

ligations. The internal organization structure and authorities of the Board of Directors 

and Group Management are set out in the organization rules.  

 

The Board of Directors delegates full managerial responsibility to the CEO, subject to 

any contrary provisions of the law, the Articles of Association or the organization 

rules. The CEO ensures that the decisions of the Board of Directors and the decisions  

he makes within the scope of his own authority are enforced. To this end, the CEO i s-

sues policies and controls compliance to the standards by the Company, group su b-

sidiaries and affiliates.  

 

With the exception of the directors of the purely distribution companies, who report to 

the sales manager of the group, the directors of all group subsidiaries and affiliates 

report directly to the CEO. The CEO or on his directive, the relevant member of the 

management of a group subsidiary or affiliate submits the proposals to the Board of 

Directors. 

 

Information and control instruments vis-à-vis the Group Management  

The Board of Directors is informed by Group Management at each meeting as well as 

by means of monthly reports on the current business situation as well as on the bal-

ance sheet and income statement.  

 

The Board of Directors is informed at each meeting by the CEO and CFO of the gen-

eral course of business, the most important business events and any measures taken. 

The CEO and CFO also prepare a written report monthly for the Board of Directors 

containing information on the course of business and the key financial indicators, with 

reference to the budget and the previous year. The monthly Management Information 

System report provides information on the order and earnings situation at company 

level and by segment, the development of liquidity, the cash flow statement and the 

balance sheet. Selected key figures, necessary for managing the business are also 

mentioned. In addition to the budget, which is drawn up annually, an updated forecast 

for the entire current financial year is prepared on a quarterly basis and made avail a-

ble to the Board of Directors. The current values are compared to the budget figures 

and analysed; the resulting measures taken are described.  

 

The CFO is responsible for financial controlling in the Group. The CEO and CFO notify 

the Board of Directors on an ad-hoc basis of major business events. As a rule, mem-

bers of the Board of Directors do not attend meetings of the Group Management, but 

in the event of major business events are notified on an ad-hoc basis by the CEO and 

CFO or invited to attend the meetings. 

 

The Board of Directors and Group Management attach great importance to the careful 

handling of risks. Group Management conducts an annual risk assessment and pre-

sents it to the Board of Directors. As well as generally ensuring comprehensive insu r-

ance protection, risk management involves the systematic identification, assessment 

and reporting of strategic, operating and financial risks . Analysis and assessment co-

vers general business risks affecting all corporate divisions and companies, and also  
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the principal balance sheet positions. For each of the top seven risks a detailed ana l-

ysis was conducted of the probability of its occurrence and its effects. The assess-

ment of all the top seven risks is presented to the Board of Directors. In view of their  

effects and importance, the risks can not only pose a strategic risk but also an opera t-

ing and financial risk should their impact be significant for the company. All risks are 

qualitatively and quantitatively gauged and assessed for the probability of their occu r-

rence and their effects. On the basis of the assessed risks, control points and control 

processes are defined for use by the relevant process owners. 

  

Risk management activities focus on hedging currency risks, maximizing the flexibility  

of the cost structure, developing markets and processing customer projects.  
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  Group Management 

 

Members of Group Management  

As at 31 December 2017, the Schlatter Group Management consisted of the members 

listed below. With the exception of Harald Reich (Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. 

KG), the members of the Group Management also constitute the Group Management of 

Schlatter Industries AG. 

 

 

 Werner Schmidli 

CEO 

b. 1965, Swiss national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.8.2004  

 

Career milestones  

 Since 1st June 2012: CEO Schlatter Group 

 2004 - May 2012: CFO Schlatter Group 

 2001 - 2004: CFO Integra Biosciences, Baar (CH) 

 1998 - 2001: CFO Tela-Kimberly Switzerland, Balsthal (CH) 

 

Education & training  

Lic. rer. pol. (masters degree) University of Fribourg  

 

Other activities and mandates 

None  

 

 Reto Stetler 

CFO 

b. 1975, Swiss national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.1.2002  

 

Career milestones  

 Since 1st June 2012: CFO Schlatter Group  

 2002 - May 2012: Head of Finance, Schlatter Schlieren 

 1991 - 2001: Head of accounting, MADAG AG, Dietikon (CH)  

 

Education & training  

Finance and accounting professional  

 

Other activities and mandates 

None  

 

 Harald Reich  

Managing Director 

Schlatter Deutschland 

GmbH & Co. KG 

b. 1967, German national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.1 2017 

 

Career milestones  

 2014 - 2016: Production Manager Bosch Rexroth AG, Homburg/Saar  

 2010 - 2014: Project Manager production cost reduction Bosch Rexroth AG, Hom-

burg/Saar 

 2001 - 2009: various positions with Bosch Rexroth AG, Stuttgart/Lohr  

 1998 - 2001: Sales Manager robotics and software, Adept Technology GmbH, Dor t-

mund 

 1994 - 1998; Planning and Project Manager assembly systems  ITT Automotive 

GmbH Europe, Frankfurt 

 

Education & training  

Dipl. Ing. (FH) Elektrotechnik (Degree in electrical engineering)  

 

Other activities and mandates 

None  
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 Michaela Wingeier 

Human Resources 

until 31.7.2018 

 

b. 1965, Swiss national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.4.2011 

 

Career milestones  

 2008 - 2011; Global HR Manager FLSmidth MAAG Gear AG, Winterthur (CH)  

 2006 - 2008: Head of Human Resources at a legal practice in Zürich (CH)  

 2004 - 2005: Personnel Manager Prionics, Schlieren (CH) 

 1996 - 2004: Group Personnel Manger MAAG Zahnräder AG, Zürich  

 

Education & training  

Degree in business studies; advanced training in Human Resources  

 

Other activities and mandates 

None 

 

 Daniel Zappa 

Sales & Service Weld-

ing  

 

b. 1972, Swiss national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.8.1995 

 

Career milestones  

 Since 1st September 2012: Head of Sales & Service Schlatter Group  

 November 2003 - August 2012: Head of Customer Service Schlatter Group  

 Until 31.10.2003: Verkaufsleiter Bereich Blech H.A. Schlatter AG, Schlieren (CH) 

 1999 - 2002: Sales Engineer H.A. Schlatter AG 

 

Education & training  

Dipl. Masch.-Ing. FH (degree in Mechanical Engineering); Dipl. Wirtsch. -Ing. FH (degree 

in Industrial Engineering) 

 

Other activities and mandates 

None 

 

 

 

Beat Huber  

Technology Welding  

 

b. 1962, Swiss national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.8.2000  

 

Career milestones  

 Since 1st June 2012: Head of Technology Schlatter Group  

 2004 - May 2012: Head of the Department of Electrical Engineering and Control 

Systems, H.A. Schlatter AG, Schlieren (CH) 

 2000 - 2004: Head of the Department of Innovations, H.A. Schlatter AG, Schlieren  

 1991 - 2000: Head of the Main Development Group, ABB Industries AG, Turgi (CH)  

 

Education & training  

Dipl. El.-Ing. ETH (degree in Electrical Engineering), M.Sc. in Management (Georgia I n-

stitute of Technology) 

 

Other activities and mandates 

None  

 

 Roland Kasper  

Operations Schlieren  

 

b. 1976, Swiss national, with the Schlatter Group since 1.6.2013  

 

Career milestones  

 Since 1st June 2013: Head of Operations Schlatter Group 

 2010 - 2013: Head of Manufacturing Maschinenfabrik Rieter AG, Winterthur (CH)  

 2009 - 2010: Project Leader  Graf+Cie AG, Rapperswil (CH) 

 2007 - 2009: Managing Director Graf Metallic of America Inc., Spartanburg (USA) 

 2002 - 2006: Project Leader Rieter Group, Winterthur (CH) 

 

Education & training  

Dipl. Betr.- & Prod.-Ing. ETH (Masters in Operating & Production Engineering ETH) 

 

Other activities and mandates 

None 

 

 
 

 

 



 Corporate Governance  Annual Report  2017 

 

26 

Changes during the reporting period  

Frank Schröter, Managing Director of Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG, took 

early retirement as of the end of June 2017.  

 

Harald Reich was appointed member of Group Management and Managing Director of 

Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG. The German national, born 1967 took over 

the function per January 1, 2017. Harald Reich is a graduate engineer in electrical en-

gineering and has worked for the last 15 years in various management and project 

management positions for Robert Bosch GmbH in Germany.  

 

Michaela Wingeier, Head of Human Resources, will be taking up a new challenge ou t-

side the Schlatter Group and will therefore be leaving the Schlatter  Group as of 

31.7.2018. 

 

Dominant Group companies  

 Schlatter Industries AG  

(Managing Director since 1st June 2012: Werner Schmidli)  

 Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG  

(Managing Director since 1st January 2017: Harald Reich)  

 

Management contracts  

Neither Schlatter Industries AG nor any of its subsidiaries  have entered into manage-

ment contracts with third parties.  

 

Number of permitted activities  

No member of the Group Management may hold more than two additional mandates in 

the highest management and administrative bodies of listed companies outside the 

Group. In particular cases, the Board of Directors may allow a maximum of two excep-

tions per member. Several mandates within a group are counted as one activity.  The 

approval of the Board of Directors must be obtained for all external mandates.  

 

 

Compensation, shareholdings and loans  

 

The relevant information is disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 30 to 33 of 

this Annual Report. Information on shareholdings can be found in the Notes to the F i-

nancial Statements of Schlatter Industries on page 83. 

 

In addition, we refer to the Articles of Association of the Company, which are pub-

lished under the following URL: 

www.schlattergroup.com/de/investor-relations/ 

 

 

Shareholders' participation rights  

 

Voting right restrictions and representation  

Each share entitles to one vote at the Annual General Meeting. Membership rights 

may be exercised by anyone who is registered as a shareholder in the share register 

30 days before the General Meeting and has not sold his shares by the conclusion of 

the Annual General Meeting. A shareholder may be represented by another share-

holder or a third party. Representatives of registered shareholders must present a 

written power of attorney.  

 

Independant proxy / electronic participation in the General Meeting  

The Articles of Association of Schlatter Industries AG do not stipilate any deviating 

provisions from the provisions of the VegüV.  

 

Statutory Quorum  

There are no statutory quorums exceeding the legal requirements.  

 

Convocation of the General Meeting  

The General Meeting is convened by the Board of Directors or, if necessary, by the 

auditors. Liquidators and representatives of the creditors also have the right to con-

vene a General Meeting. The General Meeting takes place at the company’s regi s-



 

 

27 

tered office or at another location in Switzerland or elsewhere. The ordinary General 

Meeting is held each year within six months of the end of the financial year. Extraord i-

nary meetings are held as required. 

 

The convocation of an Extraordinary General Meeting can also be requested by one or 

more shareholders who together represent at least 10 percent of the share capital, 

provided they submit their request in writing and specify the items they wish to be 

placed on the agenda and their motions. The Board of Directors must hold the Meeting 

within two months. 

 

The General Meeting is called by the Board of Directors at least 20 days prior to the 

date of the meeting by way of a notice published in the Company’s official publication.  

Registered shareholders are invited by letter to their last address entered in the share  

register. 

 

The General Meeting shall be convened at least 20 days before the date of the meet-

ing by a single announcement in the official journal of the Company. The registered 

shareholders are invited by letter sent to their last registered address in the share re g-

ister. 

 

Agenda  

Shareholders representing at least 3% of the share capital can request an item to be 

placed on agenda of the General Meeting. The request must be submitted in writing to 

the Board of Directors 45 days before the General Meeting, specifying the subject to 

be discussed and the proposals to be put to the meeting.  

 

Entry in the share register  

The Company maintains a share register in which the owners, beneficiaries and nom i-

nees of the registered shares are to be entered with name, residence, address and 

nationality. The entry in the share register presupposes proof of the correct and stat u-

tory transfer of the share ownership or the creation of an usufruct. If a registered 

shareholder changes his address, he must notify the company of the new address. 

Until receipt of a corresponding notification by the Company, all correspondence to 

the registered shareholder shall be validly sent to his address entered in the share 

register. No entries will be made in the share register of Schlatter Industries AG du r-

ing the period running from 30 days before a General Meeting until the day following 

the General Meeting.  

 

 

Change of control clauses, defensive measures  

 

Mandatory bid  

The Company has excluded in its Articles of Association the obligation to make an o f-

fer under Articles 32 and 52 of the Swiss Federal Act on Stock Exchanges and Secur i-

ties Trading (Opting Out).  

 

Change of control clauses  

There are no change-of-control clauses in favour of members of the Board of Directors 

or Group Management.  

 

 

Auditors  

 

Duration of mandate and term of office of lead auditor  

Since 1963, KPMG AG, Zurich, has acted as the statutory auditors for Schlatter Indu s-

tries AG (formerly Schlatter Holding AG). The auditors are elected by the General 

Meeting for a period of one year. Since the financial year 2017, the lead auditor is 

Roman Wenk.  

 

Audit fee  

The ordinary audit fee of KPMG AG for the financial year 2017 was CHF 130,250 

(previous year: CHF 128,000). 
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Additional fees 

KPMG AG invoiced no additional advisory fees in the financial year 2017. 

 

Information tools of the external auditors  

The Risk and Audit Committee meets once a year with the external auditors. The CFO 

attends these meetings. Reporting by the external auditors to the Board of Directors 

consists of a comprehensive report prepared after the closing of the annual financial 

statements as well as the auditors' reports. The review and assessment of perfo r-

mance, independence and remuneration as well as the election recommendations of 

the external auditors to the attention of the Board of Directors and the General Meet-

ing respectively are carried out by the Risk and Audit Committee. The discussions be-

tween the Board of Directors and the auditors, the results of the audit and the quality 

of the audit compose the assessment criteria. The appointment of the external audi-

tors for the financial year is based on a call for tenders where the Board of Directors 

compared the services and costs of various bidders.  

 

The term of office of the lead auditor is a maximum of seven years. 

 

 

Information policy  

 

Schlatter Industries AG pursues an open information policy. The financial year of 

Schlatter Industries AG coincides with the calendar year. The Schlatter Group pre-

pares its annual and interim financial statements in accordance with Swiss GAAP 

FER; until and including the 2012 interim financial statements, they were prepared in 

accordance with IFRS.  

 

Schlatter Industries AG informs its shareholders and the capital m arket via ad-hoc in-

formation of facts relevant to its share price. The Information is placed on the Schla t-

ter Group website (www.schlattergroup.com), and is automatically e -mailed to sub-

scribers to the News Service.  

Registration under: www.schlattergroup.com/en/investor-relations/newsservice. 

 

The Company’s official publication is the Swiss Official Gazette of Commerce. The 

company’s Articles of Association are available on the Schlatter Group website.  

 

Responsibility for Investor Relations lies with Werner Schmidli, Chief Executive Officer 

of Schlatter Group: Phone +41 44 732 71 70, or  

e-mail werner.schmidli@schlattergroup.com. 

 

Agenda 

 3 May 2018  Ordinary General Meeting 

 21 August 2018  Publication of interim results for first half of 2018 
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Contents 

 

The Compensation Report contains information on remuneration principles, remunera-

tion programmes and the actual remuneration of members of the Board of Directors 

and Group Management. The Compensation Report follows the principles of the Swiss 

Code of Obligations, the Ordinance against Excessive Compensation in Listed Com-

panies (VegüV) dated 20 November 2013 that came into force on 1 January 2014, and 

the guidelines of the SIX Swiss Exchange on Corporate Governance information.  

 

 

Basic principles 

 

The Schlatter Group's remuneration principles provide a transparent, competitive and 

performance-oriented framework for salary differentiation. Both basic annual salaries 

and variable remuneration components partly depend on annual performance apprai s-

als and the realization of the Group result. The responsibilities, authorities and dete r-

mination procedures can be found in the provisions of the relevant regulations and the 

Articles of Incorporation (http://www.schlattergroup.com/de/investor-relations/ corpo-

rate_governance/statuten). They are also set  out in the following principles for remu-

neration components. 

 

 

Compensation of members of the Board of Directors 

 

Members of the Board of Directors receive fixed remuneration for their activity. Add i-

tional fees can be paid for committee memberships or the performance of special 

tasks and assignments. Remuneration can also be paid wholly or partly in shares. The 

Board of Directors can decide to pay members an all -inclusive sum to cover expenses 

incurred in the interests of the Company.  

 

Annual compensation is fixed once a year by the Board of Directors at the request of 

the Nomination and Compensation Committee. It is put to the approval of the General 

Meeting in advance. If the General Meeting rejects the proposal, the Board of Direc-

tors can put new proposals to the same General Meeting for its approval. If the Board 

of Directors puts no new proposals to the General Meeting or if the new ones are also 

rejected, the Board of Directors must convene a new General Meeting within three 

months. 

 

The members of the Board of Directors whose remuneration is being fixed are entitled 

to attend and vote. 

 

 

Compensation of members of the Group Management 

 

The compensation of members of the Group Management takes account of their d u-

ties, their performance and the course of business. It provides for fixed annual com-

pensation, increased by a potential variable component of between 15% and 40%. 

Depending on the role of members of the Group Management, 60% of their variable 

compensation is determined by the EBIT achieved, and 40% by other financial indica-

tors such as average net working capital, net sales and order intake. Variable com-

pensation may not exceed 120% (CEO) and 100% (other members of the Group Man-

agement) of fixed annual remuneration. Variable remuneration can be pa id wholly or 

partly in shares. 

 

This compensation applies to all activities in all the Group's legal entities. In addition, 

members of the Group Management can receive lump sums to cover expenses. Even 

though these do not count as remuneration, they must be reported in the Remunera-

tion Report. No lump sums were paid to cover expenses in 2017.  

 

The compensation of the CEO is determined annually by the Board of Directors at the 

request of the Nomination and Compensation Committee. That of other Group Ma n-

agement members is determined annually by the Board of Directors at the request of 
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the Nomination and Compensation Committee in collaboration with the CEO. Total 

fixed compensation must be approved annually in advance by the General Meeting, 

variable compensation in arrears. If the General Meeting rejects the proposal, the 

Board of Directors can put new proposals to the same General Meeting for its approv-

al. If the Board of Directors puts no new proposals to the General Meeting or if the 

new ones are also rejected, the Board of Directors must convene a new General Meet-

ing within three months.  

 

The fixed compensation for the acting Group Management was slightly lower in 2017 

than in 2016. The variable compensation for the acting members of the Group Ma n-

agement in 2017 was about a quarter less than in 2016 due to the achievement of ta r-

gets.  

 

For the remuneration of members of the Group Management appointed after the ap-

proval of the relevant maximum amount, an additional amount is available to the 

Board of Directors. It may also be used to compensate new members of the Group 

Management for disadvantages suffered as a consequence of changing jobs. The a d-

ditional sum is limited to 40% of the last total sum approved for the fixed remuneration 

of the Group Management. 

 

 

Loans and advances to the Board of Directors and Group Management – (audit-

ed)  

 

The Schlatter Group grants neither loans nor advances to members of the Board of D i-

rectors or Group Management. 

 

 

Compensation, loans and advances to related persons – (audited)  

 

Schlatter Group has neither paid remuneration nor granted loans or advances to rela t-

ed persons. 

 

 

Severance payments  

 

The Schlatter Group makes no severance payments to members of the Board of Direc-

tors or Group Management. 

 

 

Compensation of members of the Board of Directors and Group Management  

 

Compensation is subject to the approval of the General Meeting.  

 

 

Compensation of current members of the Board of Directors in 2017 − (audited)  

 

 Chairman Vice Chairman Member Member  

CHF P. Zumbühl M. Hauser R. Huber N. Mathys Total 

Cash/book money      

Net salary 120 000 60 000 60 000 60 000 300 000 

Social insurance contributions 18 581 9 290 9 290 9 290 46 451 

Total 138 581 69 290 69 290 69 290 346 451 
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Compensation of current members of the Board of Directors in 2016 (audited)  

 

 Chairman Member Member Member  

CHF P. Zumbühl R. Huber M. Hauser N. Mathys Total 

Cash/book money      

Net salary 120 000 60 000 40 000 40 000 260 000 

Social insurance contributions 18 463 9 229 6 152 6 152 39 996 

Total 138 463 69 229 46 152 46 152 299 996 

      

      

Compensation of  member of the Board of Directors stepping down in 2016 − (audited) 

      

CHF     P. Müller 

Cash/book money      

Net salary     20 000 

Social insurance contributions     1 902 

Total     21 902 

 

 

Compensation of members of the Group Management in 2017 – (audited)  

 

 CEO  

CHF Werner Schmidli GL Total 

Cash / book money   

Net salary 319 897 1 272 028 

Variable salary (net) 
1
 126 488  335 325 

Payments in kind   

Vehicle 7 680  32 642 

Expenses for social security   

Employer’s pension & social insurance contributions 72 389  246 337 

Employee’s pension & social insurance contributions 56 370 197 805 

Total 582 824 2 084 137 

   

   

Compensation of members of the Group Management stepping down in 2017 – 
(audited) 

   

CHF Frank Schröter Total 

Cash/book money   

Net salary 103 749  103 749 

Variable salary (net) 
1
 40 417  40 417 

Payments in kind   

Vehicle 6 129  6 129 

Employer’s pension & social insurance contributions 20 326  20 326 

Employee’s pension & social insurance contributions  0   0 

Total 170 621  170 621 

 
1
  Compensation in the financial year 2017 was based on the Company's earnings in the financial year 2017 

(accrual method). 
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Compensation of members of the Group Management in 2016 – (audited)  

 

 CEO Group Mgmt 

CHF Werner Schmidli Total 

Cash/book money   

Net salary 318 969 1 301 592 

Variable salary (net) 
1
 170 370  450 210 

Payments in kind   

Vehicle 7 680  35 330 

Expenses for social security   

Employer’s pension & social insurance contributions 78 348  290 093 

Employee’s pension & social insurance contributions 60 661 208 417 

Total 636 028 2 285 642 

 
1
  Compensation in the financial year 2016 was based on the Company's earnings in the financial year 2016 

(accrual method). 
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Comments to the consolidated income statement and balance sheet 
 
 

Introduction 

 

The continued good order situation and the progress made in increasing profitability 

had a positive effect on the balance sheet and the income statement. 

 

Equity could again be strengthened and the available liquidity continues to be suffi-

cient. 

 

 

Consolidated income statement  

 

The net sales generated in the reporting period amounted to CHF 101.1 million (previ-

ous year: CHF 90.5 million). The renewed increase results from the good order back-

log as well as the increased efforts to process projects efficiently.  

 

Other operating income was CHF 0.5 million (previous year: CHF 0.3 million).  

 

The gross margin (net revenue including other operating income less costs of materi-

als and services) decreased to 48.8% (previous year: 49.2%). The market launch of 

new product lines and prototypes in the Welding segment as well as the lack of high 

margin finishing machines in the Weaving segment still weighed on the gross margin.  

 

Personnel expenses increased to CHF 35.5 million (previous year: CHF 32.8 million). 

The number of fixed and temporary employees increased during the reporting period 

due to higher output and strategic projects. In addition, accruals for pension obliga-

tions and existing time accounts for employees had to be built. The higher Euro ex-

change rate also led to higher personnel costs in CHF of foreign subsidiaries.  

 

Other operating expenses increased to CHF 9.1 million (previous year: CHF 8.5 mil-

lion). The high capacity utilization in the reporting period also led to higher operating 

expenses.  

 

In the reporting period depreciation and amortisation remained unchanged at CHF 2.2 

million (previous year: CHF 2.2 million).  

 

The consolidated operating result (EBIT) for the financial year 2017 was CHF 2.5 mil-

lion (previous year: CHF 1.1 million). The continued efforts to increase net sales con-

tributed to this satisfying increase.  

 

The financial result for the reporting year is CHF 0.7 million (previous year: CHF -0.3 

million). The financial result consists of foreign exchange gains (book and realized), 

interest costs and bank charges.  

 

The income tax result for the reporting year is CHF -0.3 million (previous year: CHF -

0.3 million). It mainly comprises income tax expenses on profits realised by subsidiar-

ies and withholding tax paid on the transfer of dividends from Schlatter North America.  
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Consolidated balance sheet  

 

Assets  

Mainly as a result of the increased net sales, the net working capital per end of 2017 

increased to CHF 14.2 million (previous year: CHF 7.4 million). Accordingly, net as-

sets from construction contracts amounted to CHF 17.3 million (previous year: CHF 

14.0 million). Inventories as of the balance sheet date amounted to CHF 14.1 million 

(previous year: CHF 13.2 million). Net liabilities from construction contracts amount to 

CHF 9.8 million (previous year: CHF 11.2 million). The resulting underfunding on cus-

tomer projects amounts to CHF 7.4 million compared to CHF 2.8 million in the previ-

ous year.  

 

Cash and cash equivalents, including short-term financial assets fell to CHF 11.5 mil-

lion (previous year: CHF 14.4 million). The net financial position per 31.12.2017 de-

creased to CHF 11.2 million (previous year: CHF 14.0 million). Receivables from 

goods and services increased to CHF 4.3 million (previous year: CHF 3.6 million). 

Other receivables declined slightly to CHF 2.3 million (previous year: CHF 2.5 million).  

 

Non-current assets as of the balance sheet date reduced further and amounted to 

CHF 6.3 million (previous year: CHF 7.3 million).  

 

 

Liabilities and equity  

Liabilities fell to CHF 30.7 million (previous year: CHF 33.1 million). Payables from 

goods and services rose to CHF 7.8 million (previous year: CHF 6.7 million), whereas 

other liabilities declined to CHF 2.8 million (previous year: CHF 5.0 million).  

 

Per end of 2017, total liabilities and equity amounted to CHF 56.1 million (previous 

year: CHF 55.4 million). The equity ratio at the end of the year was 45.3% (previous 

year: 40.2%).  

 

The consolidated nominal equity per 31.12.2017 amounted to CHF 25.4 million (previ-

ous year 22.3 million).
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 Consolidated income statement    

      

  CHF 1000 Notes 2017 2016 

  Net sales from goods and services  101 115 90 486 

  Other operating income 19  463  275 

  

Change in inventories of finished/unfinished goods, 
work in progress 

 -  507 - 2 816 

  Raw material and service expense  - 51 754 - 43 397 

  Personnel expense 20 - 35 533 - 32 758 

  Other operating expense 21 - 9 067 - 8 542 

  Depreciation and amortisation 9, 10 - 2 216 - 2 182 

  Operating result (EBIT)  2 501 1 066 

  Financial income 23  908 1 279 

  Financial expense 23 -  202 - 1 579 

  Net result before taxes  3 207  766 

  Income tax 24 -  331 -  260 

  Net result  2 876  506 

      

  Basic earnings per registered share (in CHF) 25 2.60 0.46 
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Consolidated balance sheet    
     

 Assets    

     

 CHF 1000 Notes 2017 2016 

 Cash and cash equivalents 4 11 460 14 420 

 Short-term financial assets 5, 11 144 77 

 Receivables from goods and services 6 4 329 3 643 

 Income tax receivables  18 153 

 Other receivables 6 2 292 2 496 

 Net assets from construction contracts 7 17 260 13 952 

 Inventories 8 14 120 13 189 

 Prepayments and accrued income  131 218 

 Current assets  49 754 48 148 

     

 Tangible fixed assets 9 4 902 4 928 

 Intangible assets 10 1 230 1 969 

 Deferred tax assets   215  364 

 Non-current assets  6 347 7 261 

     

 Total assets  56 101 55 409 

     

     

     

 Liabilities and equity    

     

 CHF 1000 Notes 2017 2016 

 Payables from goods and services 14 7 769 6 718 

 Net liabilities from construction contracts 7 9 831 11 183 

 Income tax liabilities   54  16 

 Other liabilities 15 2 845 4 955 

 Accrued liabilities and deferred income 15 3 438 3 349 

 Financial liabilities 13  191  224 

 Provisions 17 2 777 3 434 

 Short-term liabilities  26 905 29 879 

     

 Financial liabilities 13  76  240 

 Pension benefit obligations 16 3 304 2 704 

 Provisions 17  261  187 

 Deferred tax liabilities   117  119 

 Long-term liabilities  3 758 3 250 

 
    

 Liabilities  30 663 33 129 

     

 Share capital 18 17 675 17 675 

 Capital reserves (premium)  1 767 1 767 

 Retained earnings  5 996 2 838 

 
Total equity  25 438 22 280 

 
    

 
Total liabilities and equity  56 101 55 409 
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 Consolidated statement of changes in equity     

       

       

  CHF 1000 

Share 
capital 

Capital 
reserves 

Retained 
earnings 

Total 
equity 

  As at 1 January 2016 17 675 11 526 -7 606 21 595 

  Exchange differences    179  179 

  

Elimination of retained earnings 
against capital reserves 

 -9 759 9 759  0 

  Net result 2016    506  506 

  As at 31 December 2016 17 675 1 767 2 838 22 280 

  Exchange differences    282  282 

  Net result 2017   2 876 2 876 

  As at 31 December 2017 17 675 1 767 5 996 25 438 
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Consolidated cash flow statement    

     

     

 CHF 1000 Notes 2017 2016 

 Net result  2 876  506 

 Unrealised foreign exchange losses / (gains) 23 -  54  284 

 Depreciation/amortisation 9,10 1 914 2 182 

 Impairment of intangible assets 10  302  0 

 Gain on the disposal of tangible fixed assets 19 -  30 -  1 

 Interest expense / (income) 23 -  4 -  6 

 Tax expense 24  331  260 

 (Reversal) / recognition of provisions 17 -  639 -  783 

 (Reversal) / recognition of deferred taxes  -  253  0 

 (Reversal) / recognition of pension benefit obligations   330 -  157 

 Change in net working capital    

 (Increase) / decrease in receivables from goods and services - 3 464 4 893 

 (Increase) / decrease in other receivables/prepayments and accrued income  410 -  146 

 (Increase) / decrease in inventories  -  593 - 1 145 

 Increase / (decrease) in payables from goods and services -  476 2 086 

 Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities/accrued liabilities and deferred income - 2 171 4 718 

 Income taxes paid  -  10 -  223 

 Non-cash items  -  136  0 

 Cash flow from operating activities  - 1 667 12 468 

     

 Purchase of tangible fixed assets  9 -  992 -  449 

 Addition of intangible assets 10 -  218 -  147 

 Purchase of financial assets 11 -  4 -  15 

 Disposal of tangible fixed assets 9  30  8 

 Disposal of financial assets 11  0  14 

 Interest received 23  7  7 

 Cash flow from investing activities  - 1 177 -  582 

     

 Repayment of financial liabilities  -  197 -  115 

 Interest paid  -  3 -  1 

 Cash flow from financing activities  -  200 -  116 

     

 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  - 3 044 11 770 

 Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  14 420 2 644 

 Effect of exchange rate movements on cash and cash equivalents   84  6 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December  11 460 14 420 

 



 Financial Report   Annual Report  2017 

 

44 

 

 

 

 

 

General information  

 

Schlatter Industries AG, together with its subsidiaries (together “Schlatter” or the 

“Group”), is a global plant engineering company providing end-to-end solutions in 

connection with resistance welding and weaving machines for technical applications.  

 

The consolidated financial statements of the Schlatter Group comprise Schlatter I n-

dustries AG and its subsidiaries. Schlatter Industries AG is the Group’s parent, a li m-

ited company under Swiss law which is entered in the commercial register in Zurich 

(Switzerland) and has its registered office in Schlieren (Switzerland). Schlatter Indu s-

tries AG is listed on the Swiss Reporting Standard segment of SIX Swiss Exchange.  

 

The Group’s consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the 

provisions of Swiss company law and comply with all Swiss GAAP Accounting and 

Reporting Recommendations (FER). They present a true and fair view of the financial 

position, results of operations and cash flows. 

 

 

Accounting principles  

 

Basis of preparation  

 

The consolidated financial statements are based on the audited individual financial 

statements of the Group companies prepared as at 31 December in accordance with 

uniform principles.  

 

The consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the Board of 

Directors of Schlatter Industries AG on March 16, 2018. They are still subject to a p-

proval by the General Assembly of May 3 2018.  

 

These consolidated financial statements were prepared in Swiss francs (CHF), round-

ed to the nearest thousand (KCHF), according to the historical cost convention, with 

the exception of derivative financial instruments and other financial assets measured 

at fair value.  

 

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount 

and fair value less expected costs to sell.  

 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Swiss GAAP FER requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions and also exercise its d iscretion 

when applying the accounting principles. This affects the reported amounts of income, 

expenses, assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the date of preparation. If such 

estimates and assumptions made by management to the best of their knowledge at 

that date subsequently deviate from the actual circumstances, the original estimates 

and assumptions are adjusted accordingly in the reporting period in which the circum-

stances changed.  

 

The following accounting policies have been consistently applied in all periods pre-

sented and by all Group companies. 

 

  

Notes to the consolidated financial statements  
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Scope and methods of consolidation 

 

The consolidated financial statements are based on the individual financial statements 

of all Group companies in which the Group holds directly or indirect ly more than 50% 

of the voting rights or which it otherwise controls, prepared as at 31 December in a c-

cordance with uniform principles. The companies included in the scope of consolida-

tion are shown in note 32.  

 

The capital consolidation takes place according to the Anglo-Saxon purchase method. 

The equity of the Group companies at the time of acquisition or at the time of estab-

lishment is offset against the book value of the investment in the parent company. At 

this time, assets and liabilities of the Group company are valued at current values in 

accordance with uniform Group-wide principles. Any remaining difference between the 

purchase price and the equity of the acquired company after this revaluation is 

charged or credited directly to the Group's reserves as goodwill. Based on the method 

of full consolidation, assets and liabilities, as well as expenses and income of the 

consolidated companies are recognized in full. The share of minority shareholders in 

equity and earnings is shown separately in the consolidated balance sheet and in-

come statement. Intra-group assets and liabilities as well as expenses and income 

from intercompany transactions are eliminated. Intercompany profits included in inven-

tories from Group production on the balance sheet date are eliminated. Joint ventures 

in which Schlatter Industries AG holds an interest of exactly 50% are proportionately 

consolidated. 

 

Investments with voting rights between 20% and 50% are not consolidated. These are 

accounted for using the equity method. They are recognized at pro rata equity as of 

the balance sheet date and reported in the consolidated balance sheet under financial 

assets and in the notes as equity investments. The pro rata annual result from the e q-

uity valuation of associated companies is carr ied to the consolidated income state-

ment in the financial result, respectively as income (expense). Investments of less 

than 20% are valued at cost of acquisition less any necessary value adjustments. The 

disclosure is also made under non-consolidated participations. 

 

 

Currency conversion  

 

Foreign currency transactions at Group subsidiaries are converted into the functional 

currency at the daily rate; monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 

converted into the functional currency at the closing rate at the balance sheet date. 

The resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognized in the income stat e-

ment. Non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost are converted at the 

foreign exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  

 

For consolidation purposes, the foreign currency financial statements of foreign Group 

subsidiaries are converted into Swiss francs as follows:  

 

 assets and liabilities at the rate at the balance sheet date;  

 equity at historical rates;  

 the income and cash flow statement at the average rate for the financial year  

 movements in the statements of changes in fixed assets and provisions at the a v-

erage rate for the financial year  

 

The exchange differences resulting from the use of the aforementioned exch ange 

rates are taken to equity and credited or charged to the Group reserves at the balance 

sheet date.  
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Derivative financial instruments  

 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments primarily to hedge its exposure to cu r-

rency and interest rate risks arising from operating, financing and investing activities. 

Derivative financial instruments are measured in accordance with the same principles 

as the hedged item. Gains and losses from currency hedges are shown in the financial 

result. 

 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at nominal value. They comprise cash on hand, 

bank and postal accounts, and fixed term deposits with a the origin a maximum  of 

three months' maturity from the acquisition date.  

 

 

Securities  

 

Securities classified as current assets are stated at their current value. If there is no 

current value, securities are stated at no more than cost less any impairment.  

 

 

Own shares  

 

Own shares are recognized at cost at the acquisition date. They are presented as a 

deduction from equity. In the event of their sale at a later date, the gain or loss is 

credited directly to the capital reserves.  

 

 

Receivables  

 

Receivables are carried to the balance sheet at nominal value less any necessary va l-

uation allowances. The losses on bad debt and the change in valuation allowance are 

included in other operating expenses.  

 

The valuation allowance is made up of individual allowances for specifically identified 

items for which there is objective evidence that the outstanding amount will not be re-

ceived in full and global allowances for groups of receivables with a similar risk pro-

file. Global valuation allowances cover losses which have occurred, but are not yet 

known. They are based on historical data on receivables payment statistics.  

 

If it can be assumed with reasonable certainty that a receivable will definitely not be 

recovered, it is cancelled from the books or offset against the specific valuation allo w-

ance recognized for it.  

 

 

Inventories and construction contracts  

 

Inventories are valued using the principle of lower of cost or market, i.e. at the lower 

of acquisition price, respectively manufacturing costs and net realisable value. Net r e-

alisable value is the expected average selling price less the cost of completion and 

the selling costs incurred up to the date of sale. Manufacturing costs include direct 

material and labour costs plus an appropriate share of indirect labour costs. It is us u-

ally measured on the basis of the weighted average price.  

 

Revenue from customer contracts that qualify under FER 22 as long-term construction 

contracts (construction of a specific plant for a third party, with the duration of produ c-

tion / service extended over a long period and the order is significant to the organiz a-

tion) is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method. The income to be rec-

ognized and the resulting gross profit are determined on the basis of the degree of 

completion (proportion of the production costs incurred to date compared to the est i-

mated total production costs of the contract). Foreseeable losses that result from the 
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estimated total manufacturing costs - including expected warranty, warranty work and 

subsequent work until end of warranty period - exceeding the contract price are rec-

ognized immediately in full and carried to profit or loss.  

 

Part payments received from customers are offset against the capitalized construction 

work of the respective project. If a positive balance results after offsetting, this is 

shown in the balance sheet in current assets.as net assets from construction con-

tracts. Resulting negative balances are reported as net liabilities from construction 

contracts in current liabilities.  

 

 

Tangible fixed assets  

 

Tangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition or manufactur ing costs less the cumu-

lated depreciation and any impairment losses. Acquisition and manufacturing costs i n-

clude the expenses directly attributable to the acquisition, which are incurred in order 

to bring the asset to its operational condition for its intended use. All fixed assets are 

used to manufacture goods or provide services. No fixed assets are held for inves t-

ment purposes. Interest expenses during the construction phase of fixed assets are 

not capitalized.  

 

Components of a fixed asset with different useful lives are recognized individually and 

depreciated separately.  

 

Subsequent expenditures for an existing fixed asset are capitalized if they significantly 

increase its fair value or value in use or extend its useful life significantly. Maint e-

nance and repair work are charged directly to the income statement.  

 

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected use-

ful life. The useful life is 30 to 50 years for buildings, 15 years for fittings, 4 to 15 

years for operating equipment and machinery, 4 to 10 years for moveable property 

and vehicles and 3 to 5 years for IT. Capitalized development projects are written 

down over 5 years.  

 

Improvements to tenancies are written off over a maximum of the duration of the r e-

spective lease.  

 

Depreciation of a fixed asset begins when it actually becomes operational; assets un-

der construction are not depreciated, but are regularly tested for indications of i m-

pairment.  

 

The net carrying amount and the useful life of fixed assets are reviewed annually and 

adjusted where necessary. Gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets are rec-

ognized in profit or loss.  

 

 

Leases  

 

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards pass to the Group company at 

inception of the contract are treated as finance leases, i.e. the asset is recognized at 

the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments and the fair value of 

the leased asset and depreciated on a straight-line basis. They are depreciated over 

the shorter of the lease term and their estimated useful life (see also “Tangible fixed 

fixed assets”).  

 

The owed lease payments are shown as current or non-current financial liabilities. The 

periodically paid lease installments consist of an interest component that is carried to 

profit and loss and an amortization component (reduction in the recognized financial 

liability) that does not affect profit or loss.  

 

The Schlatter Group recognises a lease as a finance lease when the term of the lease 

exceeds three quarters of the useful li fe of the asset or the present value of the 
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agreed lease payments exceeds 90% of the fair value of the leased tangible fixed as-

set.  

 

Lease payments for operating leases are charged directly to the income statement on 

a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

 

 

Goodwill  

 

Goodwill is the difference between the cost (sum of the purchase price, the amount of 

minority interests in the acquired company and the fair value of the previously held 

equity interest) and the fair value of the assets acquired less liabilities and contingent 

liabilities (net assets acquired). Any goodwill that arises is eliminated against equity 

(retained earnings) at the acquisition date.  

 

In the case of the sale of a subsidiary, the goodwill eliminated against equity at the 

acquisition date is taken into account in order to determine the gain or loss recognized 

in profit or loss.  

 

The effects of a theoretical capitalization of goodwill on the balance sheet and income 

statement, with scheduled depreciation and any impairment over a useful life of five 

years are disclosed in the notes. For associated companies, goodwill is included in 

the book value of the investment. 

 

 

Intangible assets  

 

Acquired intangible assets include software, brand names, licences, patents, rights of 

use and similar rights. They are recognized at cost less any necessary amortization, 

but no more than the realisable value (the higher of net fair value and value in use), 

and amortized on a straight-line basis or systematically over a conservatively estimat-

ed useful life, usually of three to ten years.  

 

Internally generated intangible assets (expenses for development work undertaken in 

order to acquire or gain new technologies and gain new scientific knowledge) are rec-

ognized if they meet the criteria in FER 10, paragraph 4.  

 

Capitalized development costs are amortized over the remaining useful life of no more 

than five years. They are tested for impairment on an annual basis.  

 

 

Financial assets  

 

Long-term financial receivables from associated organizations, financial assets held 

with third parties and securities are stated at cost less any impairment.  

 

Interests in associated organizations are measured and recognized using the equity 

method.  

 

 

Impairment of non-current non-financial assets  

 

At the balance sheet date, all tangible fixed and intangible assets are reviewed for i n-

dications whether the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount 

(the higher of fair value and value in use) (impairment). In the event of impairment, 

the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss 

charged to profit or loss for the period.  

 

When calculating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted using a 

pre-tax interest rate. This pre-tax interest rate takes into account, on the one hand, 

the current market value estimate over the time value of the money and, on the other 
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hand, the risks inherent to the asset, insofar as these are not already taken into a c-

count in the cash flows. 

 

Impairment losses on fixed assets may be reversed when there are indications that all 

or part of the impairment no longer exists and/or the estimates used to determine r e-

coverable amount have changed. The carrying amount may be increased to no more 

than the amount that would have arisen had no impairment loss been recognized for 

the asset in previous years.  

 

 

Payables from goods and services and other liabilities  

 

Liabilities are recognised at amortized cost, which as a rule corresponds to their nom-

inal value.  

 

 

Financial liabilities  

 

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement is 

at amortized cost, whereby any difference between the carrying amount and the re-

payment amount over the term of the utilization of the borrowed funds is recognized in 

the income statement using the effective interest method.  

 

 

Provisions  

 

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when a past event gives rise to a legal 

or constructive obligation, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate to the amount of the obligation can be 

made.  

 

They are measured on the basis of the probable cash outflows and based on a re -

assessment increased, retained or reversed. If the time impact is considerable, long-

term provisions are stated at the present value of the probable future cash outflows.  

 

Provisions for restructuring are only recognized when there is a formal plan defining 

reliably the related costs, and a binding announcement has been made or a legally 

binding contract exists. 

 

Provisions for warranty risks from the sale of goods and services are recognized 

based on the information about warranties from earlier periods.  

 

 

Income taxes  

 

Income tax includes current and deferred income taxes. Current income taxes are ca l-

culated on taxable profit or loss, based on the tax rates expected at the balance sheet 

date and include expenses for prior-period taxes. The resulting liabilities are recog-

nized separately.  

 

Deferred income taxes are recognized on temporary differences between the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities measured in accordance with uniform Group princ i-

ples and their tax base value. An average expected tax rate is used to calcul ate the 

annually recognized deferred income taxes. Deferred income tax liabilities are pr e-

sented separately under long-term provisions. 

 

Deferred income tax assets are not recognized for tax loss carryforwards.  
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Off balance sheet transactions  

 

Contingent liabilities and other off-balance sheet obligations are measured and dis-

closed at the balance sheet date. When contingent liabilities and other off -balance 

sheet obligations lead to an outflow of funds without any useable inflow of funds and 

that outflow of funds is probable and can be estimated, a provision is recognized.  

 

 

Pension benefits  

 

The pension obligations of Group companies for old age, death or disability are go v-

erned by local regulations and practices in the respective countries. One of the two 

most important companies is located in Switzerland, where employee benefits are 

combined in an independent foundation.  

 

Abroad, a small number of extracurricular pension plans are operated over and above 

the statutory minimum. The actual economic effects of all pension plans on the Group 

are calculated at the balance sheet date.  

 

Any benefit arising from employer contribution reserves is recognized as an asset.  
The activation of a further economic benefit (from an over collateralization in t he pen-

sion fund) is neither intended nor are the prerequisites given therefor. An economic 

obligation is recognized as a liability if the conditions for the formation of a provision 

are met.  

 

 

Equity  

 

Share capital  

Shares are a component of equity, as they are not refundable and there is no guaran-

tee of a dividend.  

 

Own shares  

Own shares are presented as a deduction from equity. Purchases and disposals are 

presented as a change in equity. Disposals of, reductions in and issuance of own 

shares are recognized directly in capital reserves.  

 

Equity transaction costs  

Transaction costs of an equity transaction are recognized as a deduction from equity, 

taking into account any tax effects. Equity transaction costs include only those costs 

that are directly attributable to equity transactions and would not otherwise have m a-

terialized.  

 

Dividends  

Dividends are presented as a liability as soon as the resolution has been apporved by 

the Annual General Meeting.  

 

 

Net sales and revenue recognition  

 

Net sales include all revenue from goods and services less deductions such as re-

bates, other agreed discounts and value-added tax. Revenue from the sale of goods is 

recognized as income when the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership 

pass to the buyer.  

 

Provided that the requirements are met (see “Inventories and construction contracts”), 

revenue resulting from construction contracts is recognized using the percentage -of-

completion method. No revenue is recognized in the event of significant doubt about 

the recoverability of outstanding payments or about rights to return of goods.  
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Financial result  

 

The financial result comprises interest payments on liabilities, interest income, div i-

dend income, foreign exchange gains and losses and bank charges.   

 

Borrowing costs and interest income are recognized in profit or loss in the period in 

which they incur, based on the effective interest method. Dividend income is recog-

nized in profit or loss on the due date of their payment.  
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Annotations to the consolidated financial statements 

 

 

 

 Segment information  1

 

Segment reporting is by business area. The business areas are managed globally; the 

organisation is structured accordingly by business area. The segments comprise the 

business areas welding and weaving. The welding segment produces equipment for 

end-to-end solutions for the manufacture of reinforcing and industrial wire mesh as well 

as rail welding systems. The weaving segment produces equipment for the manufacture 

of technical fabrics for the paper industry, plus wire-weaving machines. 

 

 

Breakdown by business area  

 

   2017 

    

CHF  1000 Welding Weaving 
Total 

segments 

Net sales from plant business with third parties 57 337 15 521 72 858 

Net sales from spare parts/service business with third parties 24 043 4 214 28 257 

Total net sales 81 380 19 735 101 115 

EBIT 3 039 - 538 2 501 

    

    

    

   2016 

    

CHF  1000 Welding Weaving 
Total 

segments 

Net sales from plant business with third parties 46 402 16 403 62 805 

Net sales from spare parts/service business with third parties 23 412 4 269 27 681 

Total net sales 69 814 20 672 90 486 

EBIT - 257 1 323 1 066 

    

 

 

 

 Changes in the scope of consolidation  2

 

There were no changes during the financial period.  

 

In the financial year 2016, Schlatter (China), Shanghai, was established and fully con-

solidated per 31.12.2016.  

 

 

 

 Loan arrangements  3

 

In the reporting period, an extension to the loan agreements was agreed with the banks 

until 31 December 2018. The management believes that the funding of operating activ i-

ties is secure and the existing facilities are sufficient.  

 

Detailed information is provided in note 13 “Financial liabilities”.  
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 Cash and cash equivalents  4

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Cash  149  160 

Bank, post office accounts 11 311 14 260 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 460 14 420 

   

By currency in CHF 1000   

CHF 5 838 8 556 

EUR 2 779 3 357 

USD 1 830 1 845 

GBP  698  428 

Other  315  234 

Total 11 460 14 420 

 

Cash and cash equivalents are freely useable.  

 

 

 

 Short-term financial assets  5

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Fixed-term deposits with a term of 3 to 12 months  87  77 

Foreign exchange derivatives  57  0 

Short-term financial assets  144  77 
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 Receivables  6

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Receivables from goods and services due from third parties, gross 4 690 4 025 

Valuation allowances -  361 -  382 

Receivables from goods and services, net 4 329 3 643 

Other receivables 2 292 2 496 

Receivables 6 621 6 139 

 

Receivables from goods and services amounted to KCHF 4 329 (previous year:  

KCHF 3 643). Valuation allowances to the amount of KCHF 361 (previous year: KCHF 

382) consist mostly of global allowances.  

 

 

 

Allowance accounts  

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Specific allowance   

Balance at 1 January -  25 -  45 

Additional allowance -  51 -  13 

Reversal of allowance  7  32 

Exchange difference  1  1 

Balance at 31 December -  68 -  25 

   

Global allowance   

Balance at 1 January -  357 -  296 

(Increase) / decrease in allowance  86 -  62 

Exchange difference -  22  1 

Balance at 31 December -  293 -  357 

   

   

   

Other receivables   

   

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Value-added taxes 1 373 1 725 

Withholding taxes  0  0 

Miscellaneous  919  771 

Total 2 292 2 496 

 

In addition to VAT receivables, other receivables to the amount of KCHF 2 292 (previ-

ous year:  

KCHF 2 496) also include down payments and receivables from employee insurance 

schemes as well as various smaller items.  

 

Other receivables entail a low level of credit risk; they mainly include receivables fro m 

the state, primarily in Germany and Switzerland.  
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 Construction contracts  7

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Contract costs incurred up to the reporting date, 
including recognised profits and losses on current projects 

99 382 71 650 

Progress billings and advance payments - 91 953 - 68 881 

Construction contracts in progress, net 7 429 2 769 

 

In net terms, construction contracts in progress were underfunded by KCHF 7 429 (pre-

vious year: KCHF 2 769). Due to higher net sales, underfunding has increased over the 

previous year.  

 

Construction contracts are reported in the balance sheet as follows:  

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Net assets from construction contracts 17 260 13 952 

Net liabilities from construction contracts - 9 831 - 11 183 

   

Recognised revenue from construction contracts 74 332 64 331 

 

 

 

 Inventories  8

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Raw materials, merchandise 10 324 9 604 

Work in progress 1 132  930 

Semi-finished and finished goods 2 664 2 655 

Inventories, net 14 120 13 189 

 

Due to the healthy order book, inventories increased in value to KCHF 14 120 (previous 

year: KCHF 13 189).  

 

Despite higher inventories, inventory write-downs declined as higher net sales led to a 

higher inventory turnover. The valuation allowance developed as follows:  

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Balance at 1 January 7 011 8 331 

Recognition of valuation allowances  644 -  69 

Reversal of valuation allowances -  820 -  300 

Scrapping, liquidations -  227 -  942 

Exchange differences  158 -  9 

Balance at 31 December 6 766 7 011 
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 Tangible fixed assets  9

 

CHF 1000 Land Buildings 

Technical 
equipment/
machinery 

Other 
tang. fixed 

assets 

Assets 
under 

constr. 
Total tang. 
fix. assets 

Cost       

As at 1 January 2016  98 7 374 11 797 8 155  0 27 424 

Additions  0  19  150  235  45  449 

Disposals  0  0 - 7 - 301  0 - 308 

Reclassifications  0  0 - 1  0  0 - 1 

Exchange differences  3  14 - 68  3  0 - 48 

As at 31 December 2016  101 7 407 11 871 8 092  45 27 516 

       

Additions  0  9  632  351  0  992 

Disposals  0  0 - 140 - 19  0 - 159 

Reclassifications  0  0  0  45 - 45  0 

Exchange differences - 5  0  777  262  0 1 034 

As at 31 December 2017  96 7 416 13 140 8 731  0 29 383 

       

Accumulated depreciation       

As at 1 January 2016  0 -4 154 -10 175 -7 104  0 -21 433 

Depreciation  0 - 845 - 361 - 303  0 -1 509 

Impairment 0 0 0 301 0  301 

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0  0 

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0  0 

Exchange differences 0 -16 63 6 0  53 

As at 31 December 2016  0 -5 015 -10 473 -7 100  0 -22 588 

       

Depreciation 0 -578 -307 -317 0 -1 202 

Impairment  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Disposals  0  0  140  19  0  159 

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0  0 

Exchange differences 0 21 -658 -213 0 - 850 

As at 31 December 2017  0 -5 572 -11 298 -7 611  0 -24 481 

       

Net carrying amount at 1 Jan. 2016  98 3 220 1 622 1 051  0 5 991 

Net carrying amount at 31 Dec. 2016  101 2 392 1 398  992  45 4 928 

Net carrying amount at 31 Dec. 2017  96 1 844 1 842 1 120  0 4 902 
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CHF 1000 Land Buildings 

Technical 
equipment/
machinery 

Other 
tang. fixed 

assets 

Assets 
under 

constr. 
Total tang. 
fix. assets 

Additional information for 2017       

Fire insurance values of the assets  0 9 628 16 507 10 914  0 37 049 

Investment commitments entered into  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Pledged as collateral  0  0  0  0  0  0 

       

CHF 1000 
      

Additional information for 2016       

Fire insurance values of the assets  0 9 714 15 420 10 258  0 35 392 

Investment commitments entered into  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Pledged as collateral  0  0  0  0  0  0 

 

 

Additions to fixed assets amounted to KCHF 992 (previous year: KCHF 449). In addition 

to a production machine, investments include various smaller positions.  

 

Schlatter does not hold any assets under finance lease. There are no loans secured by 

mortgage.  
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 Intangible assets  10

 

CHF 1000 

Capitalised 
development 

projects 

Other ac-
quired 

intangible 
assets 

Intangible 
assets under 
development 

Total intan-
gible assets 

Cost     

As at 1 January 2016 8 650 7 412  300 16 362 

Additions  0  64  83  147 

Disposals  0 - 379  0 - 379 

Reclassification  0  205 - 205  0 

Exchange differences - 5 - 24  0 - 29 

As at 31 December 2016 8 645 7 278  178 16 101 

     

Additions  0  195  23  218 

Disposals  0  0  0  0 

Reclassification  0  140 - 140  0 

Exchange differences  45  282  0  327 

As at 31 December 2017 8 690 7 895  61 16 646 

     

Accumulated amortisation     

As at 1 January 2016 -7 507 -6 355  0 -13 862 

Additions - 363 - 311  0 - 674 

Impairment  0  0  0  0 

Disposals  0  379  0  379 

Reclassification  0  0  0  0 

Exchange differences  3  22  0  25 

As at 31 December 2016 -7 867 -6 265  0 -14 132 

     

Disposals - 364 - 348  0 - 712 

Impairment - 302  0  0 - 302 

Disposals  0  0  0  0 

Reclassification  0  0  0  0 

Exchange differences - 32 - 238  0 - 270 

As at 31 December 2017 -8 565 -6 851  0 -15 416 

     

Net carrying amount at 01.01.2016 1 143 1 057  300 2 500 

Net carrying amount at 31.12.2016  778 1 013  178 1 969 

Net carrying amount at 31.12.2017  125 1 044  61 1 230 

 

The additions to intangible assets of KCHF 218 (previous year: KCHF 147) are primarily 

attributable to software purchases. The development project in the area of rail welding 

capitalized in the balance sheet at the end of 2016 to the amount of KCHF 604 was fully 

amortisised during the reporting period.  
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 Financial assets  11

 

Open derivative financial instruments     

 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

CHF 1000 

Active 
value 

Passive 
value Purpose 

Active 
value 

Passive 
value Purpose 

Forward exchange transactions 57 28 Hedging 0 64 Hedging 

 

 

 

 Deferred taxes 12

 

No tax losses carried forward are recognized as assets. The existing losses carried fo r-

ward expire as follows:  

 

CHF  1000 2017 2016 

After 1 year 52 130 1 803 

After 2 years 54 495 58 378 

After 3 years  0 54 494 

After 4 years 1 919  0 

After 5 years 8 412 1 931 

After 6 years 1 175 8 445 

After 7 years  0 1 130 

After more than 10 years  0  0 

Not subject to expiry 2 085 1 866 

Total 120 216 128 047 

 

The loss carryforwards were incurred primarily at Schlatter Industries AG. Due to the  

holding company tax privilege in accordance with § 73 StG ZH and the corresponding 

exemption for cantonal and municipal income tax purposes, loss carryforwards genera t-

ed by the former Schlatter Holding AG up to and including the 2012 tax period can, 

however, only be claimed for direct federal tax purposes. As a result, losses carried 

forward of KCHF 40 675 may be claimed on the level of cantonal and municipal taxes. 

 

The average tax rate applied for deferred taxes in the 2017 reporting period was 20.6% 

(previous year: 17.2%).  

 

 

  



Financial Report   Annual Report  2017  

 

60 

 Financial liabilities  13

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Short-term financial liability 191 224 

Fixed advances/current account  0  0 

Short-term financial liabilities   191  224 

thereof CHF  191  182 

thereof Eur  0  42 

Total short-term financial liabilities by currency  191  224 

   

   

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Long-term financial liability 76  240 

Long-term financial liabilities  76  240 

thereof CHF  76  240 

thereof Eur  0  0 

Total long-term financial liabilities by currency  76  240 

   

   

Planned maturities in CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Up to 1 year  191  224 

1 to 5 years  76  240 

More than 5 years  0  0 

Total financial liabilities  267  464 

 

 

Terms of credit  

The Schlatter Group has loan agreements, which are committed until 31.12.2018. The 

bank facilities (credit and contingency facilities) for maintaining the operating business 

amount to CHF 22.75 million (previous year: CHF 22.75 million). These can be used up 

to an amount of CHF 4.5 million (previous year: CHF 7.0 million) for short -term loans. 

The interest rate is 3.5% p.a. (previous year: 3.5% p.a.). The contingency facilities are 

partly linked to conditions in connection with bond guarantees issued by the  Swiss Ex-

port Risk Insurance (SERV). The total usage may not exceed the bank limit of CHF 

22.75 million. The loans are tied to financial covenants (EBITDA).  

 

 

 Payables from goods and services 14

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

CHF 2 708 3 282 

EUR 5 008 3 377 

USD  19  32 

Others  34  27 

Payables from goods and services 7 769 6 718 

 

Accounts payable are considered at the balance sheet date which can give rise to sharp 

fluctuations.  
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 Other liabilities, accrued liabilities and deferred income 15

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Value-added taxes -1 28 

Employee insurances/socail security  178  117 

Advance payments from customers 2 082 4 274 

Liabilities towards the Schlatter Group pension fund  183  171 

Miscellaneous liabilities  403  365 

Other liabilities 2 845 4 955 

   

Holiday and overtime accruals 1 824 1 346 

Other accrued liabilities and deferred income 1 614 2 003 

Accrued liabilities and deferred income 3 438 3 349 

   

Other liabilities, accrued liabilities and deferred income 6 283 8 304 

 

The item "Advance payments from customers" includes a position of CHF 1.2 million for 

a down-payment from a customer, which, due to financial difficulties can no longer con-

tinue with the project contractually agreed by both parties.  

 

The other accrued liabilities consist mainly of accrued costs for machinery already in-

voiced in the Weaving segment as well as accruals for variable salary payments in 

Schlieren and Münster.  

 

 

 

 Pension benefit obligations 16

 

In accordance with legal requirements, the Group company in Switzerland has its own 

pension fund, independent of the Group. This provides benefits in the event of old age, 

death or disability. Financing is basically provided by employee and employer contribu-

tions. 

 

In Germany and the other countries in which the Schlatter Group is present with its own 

subsidiary, there are state social security schemes and additional employee benefit 

plans in compliance with local laws. 

 

 

Economic benefit/economic obligation and pension benefit expense  

 

 
Excess / 

deficit 

Economic 
share of the 
organisation 

Change to 
previous yr 
recognised 

in P&L of 
year 

Amounts 
related to 
the period 

Pension benefit 
expense in per-
sonnel expense 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 2017 2016 

Plan Schlatter 
Industries AG ¹ 7 061  0  0  0 1 229 1 229 1 177 

Plan Schlatter Deutschland 
GmbH & Co. KG -3 304 -3 304 -2 704 - 600  153  753  706 

Total 3 757 -3 304 -2 704 - 600 1 382 1 982 1 883 

 
1
 Defined contribution plan  
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 Provisions 17

 

CHF 1000 Warranties 
Restruc-

turing 
Project 

risks Other Total 

As at 1 January 2016  710  373 2 638  684 4 405 

Recognised  50  1 2 165  87 2 303 

Used  0 - 376 -2 327 - 62 -2 765 

Reversed  0  0 - 311 - 10 - 321 

Exchange differences - 2  2  0 - 1 - 1 

As at 31 December 2016  758  0 2 165  698 3 621 

      

Recognised 1 067  0 1 123  106 2 296 

Used - 866  0 -1 932 - 137 -2 935 

Reversed  0  0  0  0  0 

Exchange differences  42  0  0  14  56 

As at 31 December 2017 1 001  0 1 356  681 3 038 

      

thereof short-term provisions  856  0 1 356  565 2 777 

 

Provisions per 31.12.2017 have declined to KCHF 3 038 (previous year: KCHF 3 621). 

 

The provisions for warranty work to be performed are determined by an empirical value 

over several years. The due date complies with the contractually agreed warranty per i-

od.  

 

The change in other provisions includes a number of smaller items such as provisions 

for jubilee compensations to employees.  

 

Project risks requiring a provision are registered in the project with the periodically u p-

dated plan costs and posted to profit or loss using the percentage of completion meth-

od. Exceptions are projects that are completed and delivered but whose commercial 

conclusion is still open due to the technical solution provided. Likewise, risks on prot o-

types sold but not yet delivered are also included. The relevant amount, KCHF 1 356, is 

included in the column "Project Risks", (previous year: KCHF 2 165).  

 

 

 

 Share capital / own shares and reserves  18

 

Share capital per 31.12.2017 amounted to KCHF 17,675 (previous year: KCHF 17,675) 

and consists of 1,104,704 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 16.00 (previ-

ous year: 1,104,704 registered shares with a nominal value of CHF 16.00).  

 

The registered shares of Schlatter Industries AG are listed in the Swiss Reporting 

Standard of SIX Swiss Exchange (securit ies number 227731, ISIN CH0002277314, Tel-

ekurs STRN, Reuters STRN.S). The market capitalisation of Schlatter Industries AG per 

31.12.2017 was CHF 52.7 million (previous year: CHF 42.8 million).  

 

Share capital is fully paid up. Each share entitles the holder to participate in the compa-

ny's annual general meeting and disposes of one vote. 1,104,704 registered shares are 

dividend bearing shares (previous year: 1,104,704). At the balance sheet date, the 

company did not hold any own shares (previous year: 0).  
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 Other operating income  19

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Lease income  79  78 

Commission income  11  0 

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets  30  1 

Other income  343  196 

Total  463  275 

 

 

 

 Personnel expenses  20

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Wages and salaries 29 216 27 428 

Social security expenses 3 246 3 076 

Pension benefit expense for defined benefit plans 1 537 1 031 

Other personnel expenses 1 534 1 223 

Total 35 533 32 758 

   

Average headcount (full-time equivalents)  332  312 

Headcount at 31 December  345  319 

 

Due to the higher number of employees, wages and salaries have increased. The i n-

crease in pension benefit expense is predominantly due to the further reduction of the 

discount rate for future pension obligations at the Münster location, which led to  an in-

crease in personnel expenses in the reporting period.  

 

The increase in other personnel expenses is primarily attributable to the increase in 

provisions for holiday entitlements as well as overtime and extra work.  

 

The higher EUR exchange rate also led to higher personnel costs in CHF at the foreign 

locations.  

 

 

 

 Other operating expenses  21

 
CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Losses on receivables, change in allowance for doubtful accounts  120 -  54 

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets  0  1 

Maintenance costs 1 131  974 

Rent, leasing 2 587 2 600 

Sales and marketing 1 669 1 471 

Administration and consultancy  959  928 

Insurance, levies, taxes on capital  285  355 

Information technology  814  819 

Other 1 502 1 448 

Total 9 067 8 542 
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 Research and development  22

 

The current result was burdened with research and development expenses of KCHF 

5,098 (previous year: KCHF 5,385). These funds are used to implement the long-term 

development roadmap, which was further pushed in the 2017 financial year.  

 

 

 

 Financial result  23

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Interest income  7 7 

Gain on disposal of financial assets  0  0 

Non-realised gains on currency hedges  29  301 

Non-realised foreign exchange gains  25  0 

Realised foreign exchange gains  841  970 

Other  6  1 

Financial income  908 1 279 

   

   

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Interest expense  3  1 

Non-realised losses on currency hedges  0  279 

Non-realised foreign exchange losses  0  284 

Realised foreign exchange losses  46  860 

Other  153  155 

Financial expenses  202 1 579 

 

Interest income includes returns on bank accounts and time deposits. The foreign e x-

change gains and losses resulted from hedging transactions in the foreign currencies 

EUR and USD and from revaluations of balance sheet items due to the volatility of fo r-

eign currencies. Currency gains, including gains from currency hedges amount to KCHF 

895 (previous year: KCHF 1,271) and currency losses KCHF 46 (previous year: KCHF 

1,423). Other financial expenses include bank charges, fees, bank guarantee costs, etc. 

which can not be allocated to a specific customer project.  

 

 

 

 Income taxes 24

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Income taxes   

Current income taxes  176  50 

Deferred taxes  155  210 

Total income taxes  331  260 

 

In individual Group companies, income tax expense occurred due to the positive result 

in the reporting period.  
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Analysis of the income tax burden:  

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Profit before income tax 3 207 766 

Expected income tax rate 20.7% 20.0% 

Expected income tax  663  153 

Effect of use of non-activated loss carryforwards - 1 367 -  242 

Effect of non-recognition of loss carryforwards  192  302 

Other effects/eliminations  843  47 

Effective income tax recognised in income statement  331  260 

Effective income tax rate 10.3% 33.9% 

 

 

 

 Earnings per share  25

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Net result attributable to shareholders of Schlatter Industries AG  2 876 506 

   

Number of issued registered shares at nominal value of CHF 16.00 per 
31 December 

1 104 704 1 104 704 

Number of shares issued, weighted 1 104 704 1 104 704 

Average number of registered shares held as own stock  0  0 

Total average number of dividend bearing registered shares 1 104 704 1 104 704 

   

Basic earnings per registered share (in CHF) 2.60 0.46 

 

As no conversion or option rights or other potential shares are outstanding, there is no 

dilution of earnings per share. 

 

 

 

 Share-based payment  26

 

No share-based payment was paid in the financial years 2017 and 2016.  

 

 

 Risk management 27

 

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for risk management and sets the 

goals. In addition to strategic, operational and compliance objectives, goals for financial 

reporting are also included. The Board of Directors has appointed a committee - a Risk 

and Audit Committee consisting of two members - responsible for the development and 

monitoring of risk management principles. The Committee reports regularly t o the Board 

of Directors but has no decision-making authority. The duties and responsibilities as-

signed to the Board of Directors in accordance with the Organizational Regulations and 

the Law remain with the Board of Directors as an overall body.  

 
The principles established for risk management are designed to identify and analyze the 
risks to which the Group is exposed and to define appropriate limits. The intention is to 
establish controls as well as monitor risks and the compliance with the limits. The pr in-
ciples of risk management and the processes used are reviewed on a regular basis to 
cover changes in market conditions and the activities of the Group. The aim is to deve l-
op a disciplined and constructive control environment through existing training and  
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management guidelines and processes, which ensures a disciplined and conscious ap-
proach to risks. 

 

The Risk and Audit Committee oversees the management in monitoring compliance with 

policies and processes. The suitability in relation to the risks to which  the Group is ex-

posed is constantly reviewed. The Risk and Audit Committee is assisted by the compa-

ny management, which supervises a level orientated observance of processes and 

risks.  

 

 

 

 Leasing  28

 

Operating Lease  

Unrecognized lease obligations (future minimum lease payments) amount to:  

 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Due within 1 year 3 419 3 307 

Due within 2 to 5 years 9 173 3 979 

Due in more than 5 years 12 475  0 

Total 25 067 7 286 

 

The largest items of operating lease relate to rental expenses for office, production and 

warehouse space in Schlieren (CH) and Münster (DE). Rental expenses for vehicles and 

a number of other smaller leases are also included in this item. 

 

In the reporting period, the rental agreement for the property in Schlieren was extended 

until 31.5.2029. There is a one-sided right of termination for Schlatter Industries AG as 

of 31.5.2026. The lease for the property in Münster was terminated as of 31.12.2018, 

the date of expiration has not yet been determined.  

 

 

 

 Transactions with related parties 29

 

Related parties include the subsidiaries (see note 32, page 67), the members of the 

Board of Directors and Group Management, significant shareholders (see page 83), as-

sociated companies, as well as the pension plans of the Group (see page 61). 

 

A detailed disclosure of compensation can be found in the Remuneration Report on the 

pages 30 ff.  

 

Frank Schröter, Member of the Group Management until 30 June 2017, and Harro 

Schröter, Commercial Director of Schlatter Germany until 30 June 2017, are the sole 

shareholders of MMI GmbH & Co. KG. This company owns the commercial real estate in 

Münster and Meppen, which Schlatter Germany GmbH & Co. KG has leased. The lease 

in Münster has been terminated by the MMI GmbH & Co. KG as of 31.12.2018, the date 

of expiration has not yet been determined. The annual rent amounts to KEUR 394. The 

rental contract for the property in Meppen can be terminated with three months notice at 

the end of each half-year. The annual rent is 46 KEUR.  
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 Assets pledged or assigned  30

 

Per 31.12.2017, UBS AG and Zürcher Kantonalbank have a lien on all current and fu-

ture bank deposits and securities that are held on their accounts and custody accounts. 

As at the balance sheet date, the value was KCHF 7,488 (previous year: KCHF 12,066).  

 

 

 

 Contingent liabilities  31

 

Warranty guarantees to the amount of KCHF 582 (previous year: KCHF 3,487) with re-

gard to delivery date and systems' performance may become due in the event of non-

performance by Schlatter Industries AG. In addition, there are contingent liabilities for 

supplier loans in the amount of KCHF 652 (previous year: KCHF 709).  

 

 

The security guarantee for the rent amounts to KCHF 1,271 (previous year: KCHF 

1,263).  

 

 

 

 Group companies  32

 

Per 31.12.2017, Schlatter Industries AG, with its registered office in Schlieren, Switze r-

land (CH), held the following fully consolidated Group companies:  

 

Name Registered office 
Share of 

capital 
Share of 

voting rights 
Primary bu-

siness 

Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG DE-Münster 100% 100% P, R, D, S 

Schlatter North America US-Rockford 100% 100% D, S 

Schlatter France S.a.r.l. FR-Noisy-le-Grand 100% 100% D, S 

Schlatter do Brasil Ind. e Com. BR-Sao Bernardo do Campo 100% 100% D, S 

Schlatter South East Asia Sdn. Bhd. MY-Ipoh 100% 100% D, S 

Schlatter (China) Ltd. 
1)
 CN-Shanghai 100% 100% D, S 

 
1)

 established 4th July 2016 

 
P = Production 
R = research and development 
D = distribution 
S = service 

 

 

 

 Exchange rates  33

 

  2017  2016 

CHF 1 

Closing 
rates 

Average 
rates 

Closing 
rates 

Average 
rates 

1 EUR 1.17 1.11 1.07 1.09 

1 USD 0.97 0.98 1.02 0.99 

1 GBP 1.32 1.27 1.25 1.34 

1 BRL 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.28 

1 MYR 0.24 0.23 0.23 0.24 

1 CNY 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 
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 Events after the balance sheet date 34

 

The consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the Board of D i-

rectors on the date of release of the annual results on March 16, 2018. It is subject to 

approval by the General Assembly on 3
rd

 May 2018. 

 

No events occurred between December 31, 2017 and the date of publication of the a n-

nual results on March 20, 2018, which would have required an adjustment of the carr y-

ing amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group or which would have needed to be 

disclosed here.  
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 Income statement of Schlatter Industries AG, Schlieren    

      

  CHF 1000 Note 2017 2016 

  Net sales from goods and services  79 899 68 508 

  Change in inventories  -  806 - 2 811 

  Other operating income   355  198 

  Total Betriebsertrag  79 448 65 895 

      

  Raw material expense  - 47 797 - 39 668 

  Personnel expense  - 21 759 - 20 993 

  Other operating expense 2.11 - 4 949 - 4 650 

  Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets -  740 - 1 017 

  Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets -  909 -  554 

  

Total operating expenses  - 76 154 - 66 882 

  

Operating result  3 294 -  987 

  Financial income  4 016 1 280 

  Financial expense  -  798 - 1 468 

  

Profit/loss before taxes  6 511 - 1 175 

  Direct taxes  -  116  45 

  Profit/loss   6 395 - 1 130 
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Balance sheet of Schlatter Industries AG, Schlieren    

     

 Assets    

     

 CHF 1000 Note 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

 Cash and cash equivalents  10 035 13 626 

 Securities 2.1  29  0 

 Receivables from goods and services 2.2 3 082 2 778 

 Receivables from goods and services from subsidiaries   666  328 

 Other short-term receivables   908 1 281 

 Other short-term receivables from subsidiaries  5 685 1 237 

 Net assets from construction contracts  10 666 10 740 

 Inventories 2.3 9 547 9 488 

 Accrued income and deferred liabilities   21  21 

 Accrued income and deferred liabilities with subsidiaries   112  0 

 Total current assets  40 751 39 499 

     

 Participations 2.4 3 908 3 908 

 Tangible fixed assets 2.5 2 201 2 699 

 Intangible fixed assets 2.6  874 1 617 

 Total non-current assets  6 983 8 224 

     

 Total assets  47 734 47 723 

     

     

 Liabilities and equity    

     

 CHF 1000 Note 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

 Payables for goods and services  5 232 5 591 

 Payables for goods and services to subsidiaries  1 964 3 903 

 Net liabilities from construction contracts  9 495 10 722 

 Short-term interest bearing liabilities   191  224 

 Other short-term liabilities 2.7 2 329 4 504 

 Other short-term liabilities from subsidiaries 2.7  41  37 

 Short-term provisions 2.8 2 326 3 080 

 Accrued liabilities and deferred income 2.9 2 465 2 294 

 Accrued liabilities to and deferred income from subsidiaries   163  71 

 Total short-term liabilities  24 206 30 426 

     

 Long-term interest bearing liabilities   76  240 

 Total long-term liabilities   76  240 

     

 Total liabilities  24 282 30 666 

     

 Share capital 2.10 17 675 17 675 

 Legal capital reserves    

  - Other capital reserves   512  512 

 Voluntary retained earnings    

  - Net profit / loss    

    • Carryforward  - 1 130  0 

    • Profit / loss of the year  6 395 - 1 130 

 
Total equity  23 452 17 057 

     

 
Total liabilities and equity  47 734 47 723 
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1 Principles  

 
 

 General  1.1

 

The present financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provi sions of 

Swiss accounting law (Title 32 of the Swiss Code of Obligations). The main valuation 

principles used, which are not prescribed by law, are described below.  

 

 
 Derivative financial instruments 1.2

 

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to and reduce currency 

and interest rate risks from operating, financing and investing activities. The initial 

recognition and valuation takes place at no more than cost. Subsequent valuation is 

recognized in profit or loss at market prices.  

 

 
 Inventories and construction contracts 1.3

 

Inventories are valued using the principle of lower of cost or market, i.e. at the lower 

of acquisition price, respectively manufacturing costs and net realisable value. Net r e-

alisable value is the expected average selling price less the cost of completion and 

the selling costs incurred up to the date of sale.  

 

Longer-term construction contracts are valued according to the percentage -of-

completion method (POC method), provided the corresponding prerequisites are met. 

With the POC method, in addition to the acquisition and production costs, a portion of 

the profit is recognized in accordance with the progress of the work, provided that its 

realization is established with sufficient certainty. The progress of work is determi ned 

on the basis of the costs incurred in relation to the expected total costs (cost -to-cost). 

Any foreseeable loss is recognised immediately and in full.  

 

Part payments received from customers are offset against the capitalized construction 

work of the respective project. If a positive balance results after offsetting, this is 

shown in the balance sheet in current assets.as net assets from construction con-

tracts. Resulting negative balances are reported as net liabilities from construction 

contracts in current liabilities. 

 

 
 Tangible fixed assets  1.4

 

Fixed assets are valued at acquisition or manufacturing costs less the cumulated de-

preciation and any impairment losses. Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight -line 

basis over the expected useful life. The useful life for buildings is 30 to 50 years, for 

facilities 15 years, for plant and machinery 4 to 15 years, for moveable property and 

vehicles 4 to 10 years, for IT 3 to 5 years.  

 

Tenant improvements are depreciated over the duration of the respective rental 

agreement. 
  

 Notes to the financial statements of Schlatter Industries AG, Schlieren 
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 Intangible assets  1.5

 

Acquired intangibles are recognized at cost less any necessary amortisation, but no 

more than the realisable value (the higher of net fair value and value in use). Amort i-

sation is calculated on a straight-line basis or over a conservatively estimated useful 

life, usually of three to ten years.  

 

Internally generated intangible assets are recognised provided they meet the following 

criteria:  

 The internally generated intangible asset is identifiable and controlled by the com-

pany.  

 The internally generated intangible asset will bring measurable benefits to the 

company over several years.  

 The expenses incurred to create the internally generated intangible assets can be 

recorded and measured separately.  

 It is likely that the resources needed for completion and marketing will be available 

or made available.  

 

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the remaining useful life of no more 

than 5 years.  

 

Intangible assets are periodically reviewed and tested for impairment.  

 

 

 
 Own Shares 1.6

 

Own treasury shares are recognised at the acquisition date at cost as a deduction 

from equity. In the event of subsequent sale, the gain or loss is credited or charged d i-

rectly to the legal capital reserve.  

 

 
 Net sales from goods and services. 1.7

 

Revenues from product sales are recognized as income when the significant rewards 

and risks incidental to ownership pass to the buyer. Provided prerequisites are met, 

revenues resulting from construction contracts are recognized using the percentage of 

completion method. Revenues from the sale of services are recognised in the income 

statement according to work progress. No revenues are recognized if there are signif i-

cant doubts as to the recoverability of outstanding payments or to the rights regarding 

the return of goods.  

 

 
 Leases 1.8

 

Leasing and rental agreements are accounted for in accordance with legal ownership. 

Accordingly, expenses as lessee or tenant are carried to the profit  and loss statement 

in the corresponding period. The leased or rented items are, however, not recognized 

in the balance sheet.  
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2 Disclosures concerning balance sheet and income statement items  
 
 

 Securities  2.1
 

Open derivative financial instruments     

 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

CHF 1000 

Active 
value 

Passive 
value Purpose 

Active 
value 

Passive 
value Purpose 

Forward exchange transactions 57 28 Hedging 0 64 Hedging 

 
Securities include the positive market value of derivative financial instruments.  
 
 

 Receivables from goods and services  2.2
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Receivables from third parties 3 344 2 924 

Valuation allowance -  262 -  146 

Total 3 082 2 778 

 
 

 Inventories  2.3
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Raw materials, merchandise 10 986 11 636 

Work in progress 1 055  903 

Semi- finished and finished goods 2 193 1 899 

Valuation allowance - 4 687 - 4 950 

Total 9 547 9 488 

 
 

 Participations  2.4
 

     
Share in capital & 
voting rights in %    Capital in 1000 

Name Registered Office  31.12.17 31.12.16 31.12.17 31.12.16 

Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG DE-Münster EUR 3 579 3 579  100  100 

Schlatter France S.a.r.l. FR-Noisy-le-Grand EUR  23  23  100  100 

Schlatter North America US-Rockford USD  10  10  100  100 

Schlatter do Brasil Ind. E Com. de 
Maquinas de Soldar Ltda. 

BR-São Bernardo 
do Campo BRL  50  50  100  100 

Schlatter South East Asia Sdn.Bhd. MY-Ipoh MYR  500  500  100  100 

Schlatter (China) Ltd. CN-Shanghai CNY  300  300  100  100 
 
 

 Tangible fixed assets  2.5
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Buildings 1 527 2 062 

Technical equipment and machinery  302  389 

Furnitures and vehicles  113  91 

IT equipment  259  157 

Total 2 201 2 699 
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 Intangible assets  2.6
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Capitalised developments costs -  604 

Acquired intangible assets  813  836 

Intangible assets under development  61  177 

Total  874 1 617 

 
The development project in the area of rail welding capitalized in the balance sheet at 
the end of 2016 to the amount of kCHF 604 was fully amortisised during the reporting 
period.  
 
 

 Other short-term liabilities  2.7
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Liabilities towards third parties 2 146 4 333 

Liabilities towards pension institutions  183  171 

Liabilities towards subsidiaries  41  37 

Total 2 370 4 541 

 
 

 Short-term provisions  2.8
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Warranty work  418  418 

Project risks 1 356 2 165 

Other short-term provisions  552  497 

Total 2 326 3 080 

 
 

 Accrued liabilities and deferred income  2.9
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Fair value of currency derivatives -  64 

Holiday and overtime accruals 1 602 1 182 

Bonus accrual  476  532 

Other accrued liabilities and deferred income  387  516 

Total 2 465 2 294 

 
 

 Share capital  2.10
 

CHF 1000 2017 2016 

Number of outstanding registered shares per 1. January 2017 1 104 704 1104 704 

Number of outstanding registered shares per 31. Dec. 2017 1 104 704 1 104 704 

   

Share capital per 1. January 2017 17 675 264 17 675 264 

Nominal value per share (CHF) 16.00 16.00 

Share capital per 31. December 2017 (CHF) 17 675 264 17 675 264 
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 Other operating expenses  2.11

 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Losses on receivables/allowance for doubtful accounts  124 -  29 

Repairs, maintenance  183  130 

Leasing  34  50 

Rental expenses 1 675 1 678 

Sales and marketing 1 062 1 023 

Administration  259  242 

Consulting expenses  298  252 

Insurance expenses  131  100 

Information technology  528  555 

Taxes on capital  52  5 

Other operating expenses  591  595 

Service costs subsisiaries  12  49 

Total 4 949 4 650 

 
 
 
3 Additional disclosures  
 
 

 Full-time positions  3.1
 
As in the previous year, the average number of full-time jobs in the reporting period exceeded 
50 but was no more than 250. 
 
 

 Remaining amount of lease obligations  3.2
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Up to 1 year 1 962 1 973 

1 - 5 years 3 899 2 782 

More than 5 years 12 475  0 

Total 18 336 4 755 

 
The lease for the property in Schlieren was extended until 2029.  
 
 

 Assets pledged to secure own liabilities and assets subject to retention of title  3.3
 
As at 31 December 2017, UBS AG and Zürcher Kantonalbank had a lien on all current and fu-
ture bank deposits and securities that are held on their accounts and custody accounts. As at 
the balance sheet date, the value was kCHF 7 488 (previous year: kCHF 12 066). 
 
 

 Contingent liabilities 3.4
 

CHF 1000 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

Contingent liabilities from supplier credits  652  709 

Warranties  582 3 487 

Rent deposits 1 271 1 263 
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 Major shareholders  3.5
 

  2017  2016 

 
Number 

of shares 
Share of 

voting rights 
Number of 

shares 
Share of 

voting rights  

Huwa Finanz- und Beteiligungs AG, Au SG (CH) 219 545 19.87% 219 545 19.87% 

Nicolas Mathys, Baar (CH) 210 000 19.01% 191 000 19.01% 

Metall Zug AG, Zug (CH) 200 229 18.13% 200 229 18.13% 

Main Line Development Inc, Hamilton (BM) 64 870 5.87% 64 870 5.87% 

Brita Meier, Uitikon Wald (CH) 51 420 4.65% 51 420 4.65% 

Civen Ltd., Kingstown (St. Vinc. & The Grenadines) 33 901 3.07% 33 901 3.07% 

 
 

 Equity interests of members of the Board of Directors and Group Management 3.6
 

 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 

 
Number 

of shares 
Share of 

voting rights 
Number of 

shares 
Share of 

voting rights  

Paul Zumbühl, Chairman Board 12 096 1.1% 12 096 1.1% 

Nicolas Mathys, member Board 210 000 19.0% 210 000 19.0% 

Ruedi Huber, member Board 3 826 0.4% 3 826 0.4% 

Werner Schmidli, CEO 11 099 1.0% 11 099 1.0% 

Daniel Zappa, Sales 5 071 0.5% 5 071 0.5% 

Roland Kasper, Operations 2 609 0.2% 2 609 0.2% 

Beat Huber, Technology  109 0.0% 2 609 0.2% 

     

Resigned members of the Board of Directors and Group Management    

Frank Schröter, Segment Weaving 3 798 0.3% 6 931 0.6% 

Peter Müller, vice president Board of Directors 17 080 1.6% 17 080 1.6% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting the following appropriation of 
profits:  
 

CHF 1000  2017 

Retained earnings from previous year  - 1 130 

Profit / loss of the year  6 395 

Net income  5 265 

   

Appropriation   

   
Allocation to the statutory retained earnings   320 

Carried forward to new account  4 945 

 
The Board of Directors proposes that the Annual General Meeting waive the payment of a divi-
dend for the 2017 financial year and carry forward the net income to new account. 

 Motion for the appropriation of retained earnings  
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Schweiz Schlatter Industries AG 

Brandstrasse 24 

CH-8952 Schlieren 

T +41 44 732 71 11 

F + 41 44 732 45 50 

info@ schlattergroup.com 

Deutschland Schlatter Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG 

Dahlweg 105 

DE-48153 Münster 

T +49 251 7792 0 

F +49 251 7792 100 

deutschland@schlattergroup.com 

Frankreich Schlatter France S.a.r.l. 

Immeuble ATRIA, 2 rue du Centre 

FR-93885 Noisy-le-Grand 

T +33 1 4305 4545 

F +33 1 4931 0305 

france@schlattergroup.com 

USA Schlatter North America 

4640 Colt Road 

US-Rockford, IL 61109 

T + 1 815 874 9471 

F + 1 815 874 8585 

north-america@schlattergroup.com 

Brasilien Schlatter do Brasilien Ind e Com. 

de Maquinas de Soldar Ltda. 

Rua Silva Bueno, 107, Alvinópolis 

BR-09891-470 São Bernardo do Campo 

T +55 11 4125 4443 

F +55 11 4124 8755 

brasil@schlattergroup.com 

Malaysia Schlatter South East Asia Sdn. Bhd. 

No 61 Jalan Perindustrian Silibin 1, 

Kawasan Perindustrian Ringan Silibin, 

MY-30100, Ipoh, Perak 

T +605 5287600, 5267600 

F +605 5283600 

sea@schlattergroup.com 

China Schlatter (China) Ltd. 

Room 402, Building 1, No. 1502 

Logwu Road, Xuhui District 

CN-200231 Shanghai 

T +86 (137) 0160 88 30 

 

china@schlattergroup.com 

 

 

www.schlattergroup.com 
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